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THE OREGON QUESTION.

The Resolution giving the twelve months’ notice
for the termination of the joint occupancy of the
Oregon Territory, being under consideration as
in committee of the whole—

Mr. DIX rose, and proceeded to address the Sen-
ate. He said:

In entering into the debate on the question un-
der consideration, I feel constrained to differ in
opinion with two distinguished Scnators who have
preceded me, in relation to the manner in which
the discussion should be conducted. I allude to
the Scnator from Ohio, [Mr. ALLEN,] who opened
the debate, and the S:nator from Delaware, [Mr.
J. M. Crayrox,] wl o followed him. Both took the
ground, and with equally strong language, that the
title to Oregon ought not to be drawn into this dis-
cusssion; but for totally different reasons—the Sen-
etor from Ohio, because the time for discussing it
had gone by; and the Senator from Delaware, be-
cause the time for discussing it had not arrived.
‘With the unfeizned respect which I entertain for
both Scnators, 1 dissent from their opinions with
great diffidence of my own. But Iam constrained to
regard the question of our rights in Oregon, as one
on which the propriety of the measures proposed
peculiarly and eminently depends. What 1s the
proposition before the Scnate? It is, to give to
Great Britain the notice of twelve months, by vir-
tue of which the treaty between her and the Uni-
ted States, stipulating that the territory of Oregon
shall be free and open to the jreople of both coun-
tries, is to be abrogated and annulled. We can-
not disguise the fact, that this is a measure of the
most decided character, and involving the most
important consequences. What is it, sir, but a
declaration that the territory of Oregon, after the
expiration of twelve months, shall no longer be
open to the subjects of Great Britain? It 1s the
first step towards the assertion of our right of em-
pire and domain in Oregon. I can see it in no
other light. I shall supportit. But I cannot as-
sent to the propriety of adopting a measure of such
magnitude without saKing a single word in illus-
tration of our title to the territory, over which we
are thus preparing to assert our paramount rights.
I do not feel at hberty to take such a step, deny-
ing summarily all right in others, or abstaining
from the assertion of any right in ourselves.

1 propose, therefore, as a preliminary of action
on my own part, to look at our title to Oregon—
not for the purpose of defining it with critical pre-
cision, but so far as to state the general grounds on
which it rests. And I am disposed to take this
course, not only with a view to justify the vote I
intend to give, but for the further purpose of cor-
recting extreme misconceptions, both at home and
abroad, on a few points of vital consequence. No
purely American question has, perhaps, excited a
stronger interest in other countries; and I doubt
whether any other has been so greatly misrepre-
sented. The same misapprehensions existat home.
The public press, for the last few weeks, has been
teeming with essays disparaging the Spanish title,
on which our own, in some degree, rests. 1am
unwilling either to pass by these statements in
silence, or to meet them with summary declara-
tions of right. It is natural that Senators, who
have been long on this floor, and who have already
borne a part 1n the discussion of this question,
should feel differently. But for myself, having
never even listened to a debate on the subject—a
subject until recently entirely new to me—1I feel
bound to state the grounds on which [ act. This
is what I propose to do—not by the analysis of
any particular treatise, or by the examination of
any particular view of the subject—but by exhibit-
ing some of the historical facts on which the Span-
ish title and our own rest. I shall endeavor to
perform this duty in the plainest manner, adhering
rigidly to the subject, and, if possible, without ad-
dressing a single word to prejudice or passion.

The region wlhich now constitutes the territory of
Oregon was seen, and a part of its coast reconnoi-
tred—I will not say explored—half a century after
the discovery of America. In consequence of its
remoteness from the course of trade which was
opened by the voyages of Columbus, the supposed
rigor of its climate, and the certainty derived from
the expeditions sent out from Mexico, that it con-
tained no sources of wealth like those by which
Spain had been enriched in the more southern por-
tionsoftkis continent, it remained, for more than two
centuries and a half, without any permanent settle .
ment by civilized men. During this long period,
Spain constantly asserted her right of proprietorship
initby virtue of discovery,and had formed tempora-
ry establishments in its neighborhood from time to
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time. ~ During the half century which succeeded, it

was frequently visited by ships of other nations, by

accident, for purposes of exploration, or for objects

of commerce, and thus there arose a number of
claimants to the right of sovereignty and domain.

Theclaims of Russia have been adjusted with Great

Britain. She holds, by the acquiescence of the lat-

ter, the whole northwest constof America north of

latitude 54° 40', as far back as the first range of

highlands ; and by virtue of a convention between

her and us, we have agreed to form no settle-

ments north of that parallel.  The southern line of

Oregon we hold to be fixed, by the settlement of

the boundary line between the United States and

Mexico, at 420, The territory in dispute has, there-

fore, a coast of twelve parallels and two-thirds of }
latitude, running back into the interior tothe Rocky |
mountains; and the Tnited States and Great Britain
are the only claimants to the right of proprietorship
pL

Before I proceed to examine their respective
claims, it may be proper, as the subject has been
referred to on this floor, briefly to state the condi-
tions, under whieh, by the usage of nations, a right
of property in lands uninhabited, or unoccupied by
wandering tribes, may be acquired.

The basis usually relied on to support a right
of this nature is discovery; but it is a ground of
right which becomes untenable, unless fullowed by
an actual occupation of the discovered territory.
If a title is not perfected by occupation, a second
discoverer may appropriate the territory thus neg-
lected by the first. ~ But this must be upon reason-
able evidence of the intention of the first discoverer
not to take possession of it. If a second discoverer
were to seize upon and appropriate the discovered
territory, before the first had time to form an estal-
lishment within it, such an act of interference would
be regarded as an unwarrantable intrusion, which
the latter might justly resist. On the other hand, if
the first discovercr neglects within a reasonable
time to take actual possession of, to form settle-
ments in, or make some actual use of, the regions
he has discovered, the law of nations will not ac-
knowledge in him any absolute right of property
in or sovereignty over it, even though he may
have set up menuments or memorials of his dis-
covery at the time it wasmade. Such is the spirit
of the rules in relation to the discovery and occupa-
tion of uninhabited territory, as stated by writers
on international law. It is certainly not easy to lay
down any invariable rule in respect to the time
within which, or the circumstances under which, a
title by discovery must be perfected by occupation.
The rules and maxims of international luw are but
a practical application of the principles of universal
equity and justice; and in the settlement of ques-
tions of this nature, the real objects and intentions
of the parties are to be sought for in a reasonable
interpretation of their acts. Ibelieve, however, the
doctrine may be considered fairly inferrible from
the whole body of the law on this subject, that
rights by discovery remain good until superseded
by rights of occupation. 'With regard to Great Brit-
amn, 1 think I may safely say, that her practical
rule pushes this doctrine farther., She resists all
attempts by others to acquire rights by occupation
in territories which she has discovered, and thus
renders her own rights by discovery perpetual.

Lieutenant Broughton, in the armed tender Chat-

ham, discovered the Chatham Islands, in 1791, after
parting company with Vancouver, on their way to
the northwest coast.* She has not occupicd them
until recently; and I am not sure that there is now
anything more than a whaling establishment on
them; but she insists that no other power shall oc-
cupy them, Lecause it would be injurious to her
settlements in New Zealand, which are nearly five
hundred miles distant from them.

I propose now to see what acts have been per-
formed 1n respect to Oregon by different nations; or,
in other words, to examine the nature of the dis-
coveries which have been made, and the establish-
ments which have been formed in that region, ap-
plying to them as I proceed the principles I have
concisely stated.

The first discoverer of any part of the northwest
coast of America north of, or in immediate conti-
guity with, the boundary between us and Mexico,
was Ferrelo. He was the pilot of Cabrillo, the
commander of an expedition fitted out in Mexico
in 1543, fifty-one years after the discovery of San
Domingo by Columbus. (‘abrillo died on the
voyage, and Ferrelo succceded to the command.
He examined the coast from the Santa Burbara
islands, in latitude 34° to the 43d parallel of lati-
tude, but the latter part of his voyage was made,
1 believe, without landing, and by a mere inspec-
tion of the coast from his vessel. 1In 1535, eight
years before this exploration was made, posses-
sion had been taken of Culifornia by Fernando
Cortes, in the name of Spain, and an establish-
ment had been formed in 24° of north latitude,
This establishment was kept up for several years;
and the Gult of California to is northern extremi-
ty, with the western coast as high as 38° north

| latitude, had been explored.  These explorations,

and the establishments formed in carrying them
on, were all made in pursuance of a settled purpose
on the part of Spain to extend her dominion over
the uninhabited territory on the northwestern coast
of America. The discoveries to which these ex-
plorations led were therefore not accidental. The
expeditions were fitted out for the single object re-
ferred to. Tn the prosecution of this design, it is
true, the most arrogant and absurd pretensions
were set up by Spain in respect to the exclusive
navigation of the Pacific; but these must not be
permitted to prejudice her just claims to portions
of the continent washed by 1ts waters on the ground
of discovery and occupation, and the declared pur-
poses she had in view.

The next navigator who appeared on the north-
west coast was Sir Francis Drake. He left Eng-
land in 1577, 0n a predatory expedition against the
dominions of Spain in the Pacific. In 1579, after
having accomplished his object, and carried devas-
tation and terror into the unprotected Spanish set.
tlements on the coast, he landed in 389 north lati-
tude, in a bay supposed to be that of San Francis-
co, and passed five weeks in repairing his vessel.
He took possession of the country, and called it
New Albion. It is pretended that Sir Francis
Drake followed the coast as far north as 489; but
the best authorities fix the northerly limit of his
examination, which was a mere inspection from
his vessel, at 439, the supposed boundary of Fer-
relo’s inspection more than a quarter of a century

*Bee Vancouver’s Journal, book I, ehapter 11.
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before. As the British negotiators have abandon-
ed Drake’s expedition asa part of the basis of their
claim, I will not dwell upon it, excepting to add
that his examinations were accidental; they were
not made in pursuance of any purpose of explora-
tion or settlement; they led to the discovery of no
new territory; and they were not followed up by
an actual occupation of the soil. For two centu-
ries no claim to territorial rights that I am aware
of was set up by Great Gritain on the ground of
Drake's pretended discoverics.

The next explorer was the Greek pilot, Juan de
Fuca, who was sent to the northwest coast in 1592,
thirteen years after Dinke, by the Viceroy of Mex-
ico, for the purpose of discovering the Imaginary
Strait of Anian, supposed, at that dav, to connect
the north Pacific with the north Atlantic ocean. In
the prosecution of his voyaue he entered an exten-
sive inlet from the sea, as he supposcd, between
the 47th and 48th parallels of latitude, and sailed
more than twenty days in it. Such is his own ac-
count as detailed by Michael Lock: and itaccords,
as well as his descriptions, so nearly with the ac-
tual nature of the localities, that it is now gene-
rally conceded to be substantially true; and his
name is conferred by universal consent on the strait
between the 48th and 49th parallels of latitude.
Spain had thus made discoveries on the northwest
coast before the close of the sixteenth century as
far north at least as the 4~th degree of latitude, and
the nature of the explorations, from their extent
and the settled purpose in pursuance of which they
were made, excludes all claim of discovery by
others down to that period of time.

In 1603, Vizcaino, a distinguished naval com-
mander, under an order from the King of Spain,
made a careful survey of the coast of California to
Monterey, in the 37th parallel of latitude; and he
also explored the coast as far north as the 43d par-
allel, giving names to several bays and promonto-
ries as he advanced. During the scventeeth centu-
ry, at least seven different attemipts werc made by
the Spaniards to form establishments in California;
but from the hostility of the natives, and other
causes, these attempts failed, so far as any perma-
nent settlement is concerned, excepting the last,
which was made in 1697. But, within sixty years
from this time, sixteen principal establishments
were formed by the Jesuits on the western coast
of America, between the Gulf of California and
Cape Mendocino, one of which was in the bay of
St. Francisco, near the 38th degree of latitude.
During the whole period from the landing of Fer-
nando Cortes in California, and the latter part of
the eighteenth century, Spain had uniformly as-
serted her title to the northwest coast of America,
and had from time to time made efforts not only to
cxtend her discoveries there, but to perfect her
right of empire and domain by permanent estab-
lishmen's.

In 1774, Perez was ordered by the Viceroy of
Mexico to proceed to 60° north latitude, and ex-
plore the coast south to Monterey, and to take
possession, in the name of the King of Spain, of
the places where he should land. e succceded
in reaching the 54th parallel, within two-thirds of
a degree of the northern boundary of the disputed
territory, whence he returned along the coast to

Washington’s Island, as it was called by Captain
Gray, or Queen Charlotte’s Island, as it was after-

wards named by the British navigators. In lati-
tude 49° 30’ he entered a capacious hay, wlere he
remained for some time, trading with the natives—
the same bay, beyond all question, which was four
years afterwards called King George’s Sound by
Capt. Cook, and is now known as Nootka Sound.

The next year, (1775,) Heceta sailed as far north
as the 48th degree of latitude, and explored the
coast south, filling up the outline which Perez had
i left incomplete.  He had previously landed at 419
10', and erected a cross with an inscription setting
forth that he had taken possession of the country
in the name of his sovereign. In latitude 46° 17
he discovered a rapid current outward from the
land, opposite to an opening, which he immediate-
ly pronounced to be the mouth of a river. From
him it was first called the Entrada de Heceta, and
afterwards the river St. Roe. He made repeated
attempts to enter it, but was constantly baffled by
the violence of the current. This is now conceded
to have been the mouth of the river Columbia,
which was discovered and entered by Captain
Gray, of Boston, seventeen years afterwards.

During the same year the const was also explored
from the 56th to the 5Yth decree of latitude by
Quadra (y Bodega) and Muurelle, who ererted
croxses in testimony of their discoveries.  On their
return, they visited the coast at the 47th degree of
latitude, and explored it from the 45th southwardly
to the 42d.

It will be perceived by these details, which I
have deemed it necessary to state with some par-
tieularity, that previous to 1778, the year in which
Captain Cook visited the northwest coast, the Span-
iards had examined it with great care and persever-
ance from 370 to 499 30'.  They had also exam-
ined it from the 54th to the 59th parallels, and vis-
ited it at intermediate points.  And in these explo-
rations they were wholly without competitors, ex-
cepting on’ the part of some Russian navigators,
who had made discoveries north of the 56th parallel,
and Drake, who had visited the coast at the 3tth,
| During the two centuries which intervened from
the expedition of Drake to the third voyaze of
Cook, no attempt had been made, nor any design
indicated on the part of Gireat Britain, to avail her-
self of any pretended claim by virtue of the tran-
sient visit of the former to the coast; while Spain
constantly asserted her rizht to it by virtue of pre-
vious and subsequent discoveries. And in Cali-
fornia and its neighborhood she had, after repeated
efforts, succeeded in cffecting the permanent oceu-
pation of the country, which was her earnest ob-
Jject—an object which no other power during that
long period had even in contemplation. '

The third voyage of Captain (‘ook, undertaten
in 1777, gave the first indication of a desire on the
part of Grreat Britain to appropriate such perts of
the northwest couast of America as she considered
open to settlement, and subject them to her d_nmin-
jon, He was instrneted to take possession in the
name of the Kine, of convenient situations in the
countries he might discover that had not been
alveadv discovered or visited by any other Euro-
pean nower. In 1773 he landed at Nootka Sound,
in 490 33’ north latitude, where he remained nearly
a month trading with the natives and refitting his
vessel. I believe this was the only point within
the territory in dispute at which Captain Cook
landed; and it is proved by its latitude to be the
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same bay which Perez discovered four years be-
fore, and in which he passed some time, like Cap-
tain Cook, trading with the natives. The subse-
quent cxplorations of the latter were made farther
north—I believe he did not see the coast south of
550—with a view to the discovery of a passage
between the Pacific and Atlantic oceans, and they
have no bearing on the question under discussion.

The explorations of Captain Cook gave no title
whatever to Great Britain on the score of discovery
~—the only place where he landed having been pre-
viously visited by Percz. Besides, if she had
gained a contingent right of posscssion by virtue
of his explorations, she did not proceed to perfect
her title by a formal occupancy. The neglect of
Great Britain to take actual possession of Nootka
Sound, cven if she had gained a contingent right by
_discovery, is conclusive against any claim on her
part to a right of property in it. For eight or nine
years the British flag was not once unfurled there
as I can learn, although the place had, in the mean
time, been visited by navigators of other nations;
and it was not until scveral years later still that it
was even cntered by a public armed vessel of Great
Britain; and then not until the Spanish Guvern-
ment had taken formal possession of it.

In 1787, Berkeley, an Englishman, in the ser-
vice of the Austrian East India Company, saw the
Strait of Juan de Fuca, but without attempting to
enter it.  In like manner, Meares, a lieutenant in
the British navy, though in the service of a Portu-
guese merchant, and sailing under the flag of Por-
tugal, sent a boat a few niiles into the straitin 1753,
having learned from Berkeley that he had re-dis-
covered it the preceding year. Meares also ex-
plored the coast in the vicinity of the mouth of the
Columbia river, and came to the conclusion, to use
his own language, that *“ no such river as that of St.

ists, as laid down in the Spanish charts.”’—
Yoyares, &e., John Meares, Esq., page 168.

As the transactions in which Meares was en-
gaged, on the northwest coast, are intimately con-
nected with the claim of Great Dritain to a right of
Jjoint occupancy in respect to Oregon, I trust 1t will
not be deemed superfluous if I examine them some-
what in detail.

Before making the explorations above referred
to, Meares had landed at Nootka Sound, and lefta
party to build a small vessel. He had, for a trifling
consideration, obtained the grant of *‘a spot of
ground”’ from Maquinna, the King of the surround-
ing country, to build a house for the accommoda-
tion of the party. The occupation was avowedly
for a temporary purpose; and he had stipulated
with Maquinna to restore the possession to him,
when he (Meares) should finally leave the coast.*
In the autumn of the same year, he left Nootka
Sound with his vessels, one of which wintrred in
China, and the two others in the Sandwich Islands.

*¢-Maquinna had not only most readily consunted to grant
us a spot of ground in his ternitory, whereon a house might
be built for the accomnoditiom ot U people we intended to
leave there, but had promised us also his assistance in for-
warding our works, and his protection of the party, who
were destined to remain at Nootka during our absence.”-—
s, §c., bu Juhn Meres, e 114

“The chiet was idso reiuested to shiow every mark of at-
tention and friendship to the puty we =hould leave on shore;
and, as a bribe to secure his attaclunent, he wias promised,
that when we finally left the cou-t, e ~hould enter 1nto tull
Ppoas ss1on ot the lisuse, and ail the goods and chattels there-
unto belonging.”’—-Ib., puge 120,

I should have before observed that he arrived at
Nootka Sound with two vessels, the Felice and the
Iphigenia; and the third, the Northwest America,
was built there during the summer. In the mean-
time, the Columbia and the Washington, two
American vessels from Boston, entered the sound
and passed the winter; and from all the testimony
relating to the subject, there is no doubt that the
lot occupied by Meares was abandoned, or restored
to Maquinna, in pursuance of the agreement be-
tween them. During all this time, it is to be re-
collected, Meares was sailing under the Portu-
guese flag; and it is a curious fact, that he carried
with him instructions to repel by force any attempt
on the part of Russian, Spanish, or English ves-
sels, to seize him, or carry him out of his way.
He was further instructed, in case he was success-
ful in capuring his assailant, to send the vessel to
China, to be condemned, and the crew to be tried
as pirates;* and yet, sir, notwithstanding he was
sailing under a foreign flag, with orders to treat his
Britannic Majesty’s subjects as pirates, in case
they molested him, the British Government doesnot
scruple to found its title to Oregon on his voyage.
Though the vesscls of Meares sailed under the
Portuguese flag, and under the name of a Portu-
guese subject, he asserted, in his memorial to Par-
liament, that the partiesin interest were British mer-
chants. [ desire to state the whole truth, and there-
fore I give a fact I have not seen noticed. Atpage
173 of his Voyuges, it will be seen that he took pos-
session of the Straits of Juan de Fuca, in the name of
the king of Gireat Britain, in July, 1785, Butinde-
pendently of the objection to claims founded upon
the transactions of an individual, who, under the
most favorable view that can be taken of him, had
sought the protection of a foreizgn flag to perpetrate
frauds on the revenue laws of China, this unau-
thorized act of taking possession under such a flag
was preceded many years by similar formalities
on the part of the gpunish navigators, under ex-
press orders from their sovereign. The twofold
character which Meares united in his person cer-
tainly gave him manifest advantages, both asa
trader and a discoverer. He was a Portuguese
captain when defrauding the revenue laws of China
for the benefit of British subjects, and a British
lientenant when encroaching on the territorial
rights of Spain, for the benefit of the British sove-

reign.

On the 6th of May, 1789, Martinez, a_Spanish
naval commander, with two public wrmed vessels,
entered Nootka Sound, with instructions to assert
and maintain the paramount ri<hts of Spain to the
place, and to the adjucent consts.  The Iphigzenia,
and the Northwest Anierica, two of Meares's ves-
sals had returned from the Sandwich [slands, still
sailing under Portuguese colors, and arrived in the
Sound on the 20th of April, sixteen days hefore
Martinez. ‘T'he Northwest America sailed eight
days afterwards on a trading voyage, and the
Iphigenia was a short time subsequently seized by
Martinez, on the ground that her instructions were
hostile to Spain. She was, however, soon restored,
and continued 1o trade under Portuguese colors—a
fact which shows conclusively that no claim can
justly be set up by Great Britain on the basis of
the voyage of Meares to Nootka, and his tempo-

*Appendix to Moares’s Voyages, papers No. 1.
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rary establishment there. The Northwest Amer-
ica was also seized, for reasons not directly con-
nected with any question of sovereignty, and was
employed for nearly two years in the Spanish
service.

In the month of June, 1789, two vesscls, the Ar-
gonaut and Princess Royal, sailing under British
eolors, arrived at Nootka, and were seized by Mar-
tinez. It is unnecessary to enter into the details
of this transaction. It is sufficient to say that it
led to an animated discussion between the Govern-
ments of Great Britain and Spain, in respect to
their rights in the Pacific, and the western coast of
America, which, for several months, threatened to
produce a war between the two countries, but
which was finally terminated in Oectober, 1790, by
the treaty of the Escurial, or the Nootka Sound
convention, as it is more frequently denominated
with us. Before the negotiations were concluded,
both vessels were voluntarily released by the Span-
ish authorities in Mexico.

As the Nootka Sound convention constitutes an
essential ingredient in the claim of Great Britain,
it will be necessary to advert to such of its provis-
ions as are made the foundation of her title to the
qualified exercise of sovereignty which she asserts
over the northwest coast of America, and to con-
sider them in connexion with the circumstances
under which they were framed. The articles which
relate particularly to the question under discussion
are the 1st, 3d, 5th, and 6th.

The Ist article provides that ¢ the buildings and
¢tracts of land situated on the northwest coast of
¢ the continent of North America, or on the islands
‘ adjacent to that continent, of which the subjects
¢ of his Britannic Majesty were dispossessed about
* the month of April, 1789, by a Spanish officer,
¢ shall be restored to the said British subjects.”’

The third article provides, that, * in order to
¢ strengthen the bonds of friendship, and to pre-
‘serve in future a perfect harmony and good un-
¢ derstanding between' the two contracting parties,
¢it is agreed that their respective subjects shall not
¢ be disturbed or molested, either in navigating or
¢ carrying on their fisheries in the Pacific ocean, or
¢in the South seas, or in landing on the coasts of
¢ those seas in places not already occupied, fur the
¢ purpose of carrying on their commerce with the
¢ natives of the country, or of making settlements
¢ there; the whole, subject, nevertheless, to the re-
¢ strictions specified in the three following articles.”

The 5th article provides that “as well in the
¢ places which are to be restored to the British
¢ subjects by virtue of the first article, as in all
¢ other parts of the northwestern coast of America,
¢ or of the islands adjacent, situate to the north of
¢ the parts of the said coast already occupied by
¢ Spain, wherever the subjects of either of the two
¢ Powers shall have made settlements since the
‘month of April, 1789, or shall hereafter make
¢ any, the subjects of the other shall have free ac-
¢ cess, and shall carry on their trade without any
¢ disturbance or molestation.”

The sixth article relates to the coast of South
America; but it has an importance in containing a
definition of the erections which may he made,
confining them to such as may serve the purposes
of fishing; and the provisions of the third article
are expressly declared to be subject to the restric-

tions in ““the three following articles,” one of
which is the sixth.*

I now proceed to state certain facts in respect
to this convention, and to draw from them con-
clusions at which I have arrived with some diffi-
dence. The facts I shall endeavor to present with
a rigid regard to aceuracy. If my conclusions are
erroneous, the better jud);rmem of the Senate will
correct them; and I shall have the consolation of
reflecting thatmy errors—if they shall prove such—
have led to the discovery of truth, which I am sure
is the great object of every Senator on this floor.

The first article was practically inoperative,
from a total misapprehension of the facts which it
supposed.  There is no evidence that subjects of
his Dritannic Majesty had been dispossessed of
buildings or tracts of lands in April, 1789, or at
any other time, by a Spanish officer. In the mes-

*On the 1st of March, 1825, Colonel Benton made an ahle
speech in the Senate of the United States in favor of the oc-
cupation of 1t Oregon (Columbia) river. In this speech
he examined the treaty of the Escurial, (the Nootka Sound
Convention,) and insisted that it was proved by its terms to
he “atreatyofe ion, and not of acquisition of rights on
the part of Great Britain,’’ and ¢ that the permission to land
and to make settlements, so far from contemplating an ac-
quisition of territory, was limited by subsequent restrictions
to the erection of temporary huts for the personal accommo-
dation of fishermen and traders only.” These positions
were enforeed in his argument by a reference to the asser-
tions of Mr. Fox, and the admissions of Mr. Pitt, when the
Nootka Sound controversy was under discussion in the Brit-
ish Parliament. The following are some of the passages to
which he referred:

“Mr. Fox said: What, then, was the extent of our rightg
¢ before the convention, (whether admitted or denied by Spain
“was of no consequence,) and to what extent were they
“now secured to us? We possessed and exercised the free
¢ navigation of the Pacific acean, without restraint or limit-
fation. 1We possessed and exercised the right of carrying
¢ on fisheries in the South seas equally unlimited.” ¢« This
¢ estate we had, and were daily improving; it was not to be
¢ disgraced by the name of an acquisition. The admission
¢ of part of these rights was all we had obtained. Our right
¢ before was to settle in any part of the south or northwest
¢ coast of America not fortified against us by previous occu-
¢ pancy; and we were now restrieted to settle in certain
¢ places only, and under certain restrictions. This was an
¢important concession on our part. Cur rights of fishing
¢extended o the whole ocean ; and now it was limited and
¢to be carried on within certain distances of the Spanish
¢ setilements.  Our right of making settlements was not, as
‘now, a right to build huts, but to plant colonies if we
¢thought proper. Surcly these were not acquisitions, or
¢ rather conquests, as they must be considered, if we were to
¢judge Dby the triumphant language respecting them, but
¢great and important concessions.” ¢ By the third article
¢ we are authorized to navigate the Pacific ocean and South
¢seas, unmolested, for the purpose of carrying on our
“fisheries, and to land on the unsettled coasts for the pur-
¢pose of trading with the natives; but after this pompous
¢ recognition of right to navigution, fishing, and commerce,
¢comes another article, the sixth, which takes away the
¢ right of landing, and erecting even temporary huts, for any
¢ purposc hut that of carrying on the fishery, and amounts
¢to a complete dereliction of all right to scttle in any way
¢ for the purpose of commerce with the natives.”’—British
Parliamentury History, vol. 23, p. 990.

Mr. Pitt, in reply, did not deny the accuracy of this con-
structinn of the treaty as to settlements and erections.  But
he maintained # that though what this country (Great Brit-
¢ ain) had gained, consisted not of new richty, it certainly
¢did of new advantages. Ve had before a right to the
¢ southern whale fishing, and a right to navigate and carry
¢ on fisheries in the Pacific ocean, and to trade on the coast
¢ of any part of Northwest America; but that right had not
¢only not been acknowledged, but disputed and resisted ;
¢ whereas by the convention it was secured to us—a cir-
¢ cumstance which, thoueh no new right, was a new ad-

¢ vantage.”—Ih. page 1002.

This subject has recently been further illustrated in a
close and well-reasoned argument by Mr. Owen, of [ndiana,
in the House of Representatives.
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sage of the British King to Parliament, and in the
earnest discussions between the two countries in
respect to the seizure of the British ships, I
find no mention of such dispossession. When
Vancouver was sent out, in 1792, to receive pos-
session of the buildings, &c., to be restored, none
could be found excepting those erected by the
Spaniards. No building occupied by British sub-
jects remained at Nootka in 1789, when Martinez
arrived there; and it was denied by the Indians
that any tracts of land had been ceded to British
subjects. In fact, there were no traces of the or-
cupancy which the article supposed. The only
pretence of a cession of territory of which there
was any evidence, was the right acquired by
Mearcs, while acting in the name of a Portuguese
citizen, and sailing under the flag of Portugal, to
oceupy temporarﬂ{1 a very small lot, which he
himself admits he had agreed to restore when he
should leave the coast.

After a long controversy on this subject between
Vancouver and Quadra, the Spanish commander
at Nootka, the former departed without receiving
any restitution of buildings or lands, and the sub-
Jject was referred to their respective Governments.
fn 1796, Captain Broughton arrived at Nontka,
and found the place unoccupied. (See his Voy-
age of Discovery to the North Pacific Ocean, page
50.) He nowhere states that he was sent out
with instructions to adjust the difficulty. But he
says he was informed, by letters left with Maquin-
na, the Indian King, that ¢ the Spaniards Liad de-
livered up the port of Nootka, &c., to Lieutenant
Pierce, of the marines, agrecably to the mode of
restitution settled between the two Courts.”” But
there is no proof of such restitution. The only
authority relied on to show such a restitution, is
one recently produced by the London Tiue,
allude to De IEOCI], vol. I, page 126. He say

¢ The execution of the convention of the 2xilh
¢ October, 1790, [the Nootka convention] expe-
¢ rienced some difficultics which delayed it till
€1795. Tley were terminated the 23d of March
¢ of that year, on the spot itself, by the Spanish
¢ Brigadier Alavaand the English Lieutenant Poara,
¢ who exchanged declarations in the bay of Noot-
¢ ka; after which the Spanish fort was destroyed;
¢ the Spaniards embarked, and the English flag
¢ was planted there in sign of possession.”™*

De Koch has the reputation of being accurate;
but there is certainly one error in his statement,
There was no such name as Poara in the British
Registers of that year. He doubtless meant Pierce.

In opposition to this testimony of a foreign
writer, we have the assertion, twice repeated, of
the British historian, Belsham, that the Spanish
flag at Nootka was never struck, and that the place
was virtually relinquished by Great Britain.t If

* See Iistoire Abrégée des Traités de Paix, &c. par M.
de Koch, continué, &r. par F. Schocll.

¢« L’exécution de la convention du 28 Octobre, 1790,
éprouva, au reste, des difficultés quila retardérent jusqu’en
1795. Elles fureut terminées 3 Mars de cette annee, sur
les licux mé&mes, par le Brigadicr Fspagiol Alava, et le Lieu-
tenant Anzl a1, qui échangerent d-s declarations dans
le golfe de Nontku inéme; apres que le fort Espagnol fut
rasé, les Espagnols s’embarquérent, et le pavillon Anglais y
fut planté en signe de possession.”

t« It is certain, nevertheless, from the most authentic
subsequent information. that the Spanish flag flying at the
fort and settlement of Nootka was never struck, and that

any restitution was ever made, the evidence must
be"in the possession of Great Britain, Seiflor
Quadra, in 1792, offered to give Vancouver posses-
sion, reserving the rights of sovereignty which
Spain po: ¢d. There may have been arestitution
with such reservation; but if there is any evidence
of & restitution, why has it not been produced by
the British negotiators, or at least referred to?
Where are the declarations mentioned by De Koch
as having been exchanged? Why, I repeat, hasthe
evidence not been produced? Probably because, if
there is any such evidence, it must prove a condi-
tional and ‘not an absolute surrender—such a sur-
render as she is unwilling to show—a surrender
reserving to Spain her rights of sovereignty. If
there was a restitution, and she possesses the evi-
dence of it, she probably secretes it, as she secreted
the map of the northeastern territory with the red
line, because it would have been a witness against
her. When Vancouver went out in 1792, he car-
ried an order from the Spanish Government to the
commander at the port of St. Lawrence (Nootka)
to restore the buil(rings and districts or parcels of
land which were * occupied”” by the subjects of
Great Britain at Nootka and Port Cox, and of
“which the English subjects were dispossessed.”
Quadra refused to execute it. No occupation—no
dispossession was proved. The treaty did not
name Nootka or Port Cox. Quadra considered,
doubtless, the occupation and dispossession as facts
to be proved. Though the treaty was absolute in
its terms, its execution depended on a contingency
assumed to have happened—a contingency to be
shown. TIn the absence of any such proof, we have
aright to insist on the evidence of a restitution,
full, formal, unconditional, absolute. Broughton,
in 1796, says the restitution was made agreeably
to the mode *“settled hetween the two Courts.”
This was a mode settled on the reference of the
subject to the two Governments after the refusal of
Quuadra to surrender Nootka to Vancouver. Van-
couver, in his Journal, vol. 6, page 118, says that
on the 12th September, 1794, Sefior Alava told him
at Monterey that the matter had been adjusted b
their respective Courts ¢ nearlyon the terms”whic{
he (Vancouver) had repeatedly offered to Quadra.
LEven this statement, coming from Vancouver,
shows that there was a new agreement between
the Courts. What was the agreement? 'We have
a right to call for its production.

Such was the practical execution of the first arti-
cle of the Nootka Sound convention. One fact is
undeniable. Great Britain never occupied Nootka.
From 1796 to the present day no attempt has been

the whole territory has been virtually relinquished by Great
Britain—a measure, however politically expedient, which
involves in it a severe reflection upon the Minister who
could permit o insidious an encroachuient upon the ancient
and acknowledged rights of the Crown of Spain.”’—Bel-
shum’s History of Great Britain, vol. R, page 337-°38,

¢ But though England, at the expense of three millions,
extorted from the Spaniards a promise of restoration and
reparation, it is well ascertained, first, that the setdement in
question never was restored by Spain, nor the Spanish flag
at Nootka ever striek ; and sceondly, that no settlement has
even been 1l y P by E d on the Cali-
fornian coast. The claim of right set up by the Court of
Londan, it is therefore plain, has been virtuaily abandoned,
notwithstanding the menacing tone in whicli the negotiation
was conducted by the British admini=tration, who cannot
e-rape some censure for encouraging thoxe vexatious en-
croachunents on the territorial rights of Spiin.”’— HBelsham’s
History of Greut Brituin, vol. 8, Appendiz, page 40, 41.
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made to reoccupy it by civilized men. Captain
Belcher, a British naval officer, visited the place in
1837, while making a voyage round the world. In
his narrative, page 113, vol. 1, he says:

“ No vestige remains of the settlement noticed
¢ by Vancouver, nor could 1 discern on the site of
¢ the Spanish battery the slightest trace of stones
¢ employed for building. The chiefs pointed out
¢ where their houses stood, and where the potatoes
¢ grew, but not a trace remains of a European.”

The third article, besides stipulating for an un-
molested enjoyment of the right of navigating and
fishing in the Pacific and South Scas and Janding
on the coast, conceded in express terms to the sub-
Jects of both nations the right to form settlements
n glaces not already occupied; but this right was
subject to the restrictions of the three following
articles, one of which was to limit its exercise to
the parts of the coast, or the islands adjacent,
north of the parts already occupied by Spain. It
had, by the terms of the compact, no application
whatever to parts of the coast of North America
south of the places occupied by Spain at the time
the treaty was made. he Important question
arises, what was the most northern point occupied
by Spain in 17902 This became a matter of dis-

reement between the Spanish and British author-
ities at a very early day after the Nootka Sound
convention was formed. Vancouver clnimed not
only the whole of Nootka Sound, but also Port
Cox, south of it; and he insisted, to use his own
phraseology, that “ the northernmost spot on the
¢ Pacific coast of America, occupied by the Span-

¢ iards previous to the month of May, 1739, was

¢ the Presidio of San Francisco, inlatitude 370 4%'."*
Now, it will be observed that an attempt was made
to give to the Nootka Sound convention a con-
struction wholly unwarranted by its terms. Vau-
couver endeavored to fix the month of April, 17x:
as the time when the question of the most northern
occupation of Spain was to be settled. The lan-
guage of the convention, in respect to the right of
forming settlements, is, ¢ north of the paris of the
said coast already occupied by Spain;” fixing the
time, according to every just rule of construction,

at the date of the treaty, the 28th of October, 1710, ‘

This construction is strengthened by the fact, that
a subsequent article concedes the right of forming
temporary establishments on the coast of South
America, south of parts “already occupied” by
Spain, and referring indisputably to the date of the
treaty. The words ‘“already occupied’’ are the
same in both articlcs, and they must be considered
as referving to the same period of time.

The question then rccurs, what was the most
northerly point occupied by Spain in October, 1790,
at the conclusion of the treaty #

Martinez, as has been scei, tool possession of
Nootka Sound on the 6th of May, 1789; and im-
mediately landed materials and cannon for build-
ing and arming a fort on a small island, at the en
trance of Friendly Cove. In November he return-
ed to St. Blas, and in the spring of 1790 Captain
Elisa took his place. A permanent establishment
was formed, vessels were sent out on exploring
expeditions; and, during the negotiations between
Vancouver and Quadra in 1792, the Spaniards
were in possession of houses and cultivated lands.
Vancouver again found them in possession in 1793,
under Sefior Fidalgo, and in 1794, under Seiior

Saavadra, and the post was maintained without in-
terruption until 1795.* Dy turning to page 336,
volume 2, of Vancouver’s Journal, a view of the
Spanish establishment at Friendly Cove, on Noot-
ka Sound, will be scen, from a ‘sketch taken on
the spot by one of Viurouver’s party, in Septem-
ber or October, 1792, and it exhibits ten roofed
buildings, with several enclosures of cultivated
land. It also exhibits, totally distinct from these
lands and buildings, a cove adjoining, and a refer-
ence to it, statine that it includes ““the territories
which, in Septenther, 1792, were offered by Spain
to be ceded to Great Diitain.’”  This was the site
of the hut occupied Ly Meares, and the Spanish
commander refused to make a formal and absolute
swrrender to Great Britain of any other land.

Thus it is establishid, by proof not to be im-
peached, that the Spaniards were in the oceupation
of a post at Nootka Sound in 1790, when tlie con-
vention was negotiated and concluded; and I sub-
mit, therefore, whether this must not be regarded
as the southern limit of' the rezion, within which
the right of forming settlenients, recognised or con-
ceded by the convention, was to be exercised.
This_point was strenuously and perseveringly in-
sisted on by Quadra in his negotiation with Van-
couver, and with obvious justice. 'To use Van-
couver’s own language, paze 342, 2d volume of
his Journal, Quadra observeid that ¢ Nootka ought
¢ to be the last or most northwardly Spanish set-
¢ tlement; that there the dividing line should be
¢ fixed, and that from thence to the northward
¢ should be fice for cutrance, uxe, and commerce
¢ to both partics, contformably with the fifth article
¢ of the convention; that cxialilishments should not
“be formed without permission of the respective
¢ Courts, and that the Enclish should not pass to
‘ the south of Fuca.”” Such was Quadra’s con-
struction of the treaty;and he uniformly refused to
make any formal surrender of territory or build-
ings, excepting the small cove referred to. Noot-
ka Sound is midway between the J9th and 50th
parallels of latitude; and south of this point, if
Quadra’s position was well taken, Great Britain
could claim no right by virtue of the convention,
though it were sull in force.

That Greut Britain would have had the right,
under the convention, at any time during its con-
tinuance, to form a temporary establishment on
any part of the porthwest coust, north of the Span-
ish post at Nootka, will not be disgmlr}d; though it
would have been subject to the right of free access

* Vanconver arrived at Nootka Sound on the 20th May,
1793, and found the Spaniards in possession. He says:
« An officer was immediately despatched on shore to ac-
quaint Sefior Fidalgo of our arrival, and that I would salute
the fort it e wonld make an eqnal return 5 this was aceord-
ingly done with eleven guns.”—VFancouver’s Journal, vol.
3, page 422,

? Vancouver arrived at Nootka Sound on the 5th of Octo-
ber, 1793, and, to use his own woids, * the usual ceremonies
of saluts, and other formaliti
by Mr. Puget, I waited on S
of the post.”—7Vol. 4, page 239,

Vancouver arrived at Nootka Sound nn the 2d September,
1794, and found Brigadier General Alava in command. He
left without resuming the negotintion which he had com-
menced with Quadra, in 1792.  On the 12th November, 1794,
hie was inforined hy General Alava, at Monterey, where they
met, fhat instructions had been sent to adjust the matter in
an amicable wiy, and nearly on the _terms which he (Van-
couver) had repeatedly offered to Sefior Quadra in Septem-
ber, 1792.  But of this, as has been seen, there is o satis-
factory evidence.—See 6t volume, page 118,

“(, accompanied

sy
avadr, the commander
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and trade reserved to the subjects of Spain. But
she neglected to assert her right. She formed no
settlements in pursuance of the convention; and, in
1796, Spain, by declaring war against her, put an
end to the treaty, agrecably to the acknowledged
principle of international law, that the permanence
of treaty stipulations can only be secured by ex-
press agreement, and that without such an agree-
ment they cease to be binding on the occurrence
of hostilities between the contracting parties, unless
there iz something in the nature of the questions
settled which is, of necessity, permancnt and final.
Having fuiled, then, to make any settlement on the
coast from 1790 to 1796, all rights conceded by the
convention ceased with the declaration of war,
by which it was terminated. From that time forth,
Great Britain stood in precisely the same relation
to Spain as though the convention had never been
formed; and in order to establish any claim she
may advance to territorial rights on the northwest
coast, she must resort to those general rules found-
ed upon discovery and occupation which were
briefly adverted to at the commencement of my re-
marks.

I will not discuss the question whether the trea-
ty of the Escurial was revived by the treaty of
Madrid, in 1814. I consider it put at rest by the
able argument of the American negotiator, Mr.
Buchanan.

Let me now revert to the progress of discovery
and exploration, which I was briefly sketching, and
which was interrupted by the events of the Nootka
Sound controversy.

In 1789, the American sloop Washinzton, com-
manded by Captain Gray, who alterwards discov-
ered the Columbia river, entered and sailed fifty
niiles in the Strait of Juan de Fueca. Mecares, in
his narrative, describes a voyage by the Washing-
ton entirely through the strait to the north of the
islands of Quadra and Vancouver, and thence into
the Pacific. If such a voyage was ever made, it
must have been under Captain Kendrick, who was,
at another period, in the command of that vessel;
for Giray, when he met Vancouver in 1792, said it
was not made by himself. But, be this ag it may, it
is certain that the Washington was the first vessel
which penetrated the strait Leyond its mouth after
its discovery by De Fuca. :{ subisequent exami-
nation was made in 1790, as high as 50°, by order
of the Spanish commander at Nootka Sound; so
that its shores were well known in their general
outlines before the examinations made by Van-
couver two yeurs afterwards.

In 1792, Vancouver arrived on the northwest
coast, with instructions to examine and survey
the whole shore of the Pacific from the 35th to the
60th parallel of latitude, and particularly to exam-
ine ¢ the supposed Strait of Juan de Fuca,”
“ through which the sloo) Washington is report-
ed to have passed in 1759, and to have come out
again to the northward of Nootka.” He passed the
mouth of the Columbia river, which he considered
as an opening undeserving of “more attention,”
and came to the conclusion that, between the 40th
and 48th parallels of latitude the rivers which had
been described ¢ were reduced’ (I use his own
words) ¢ to brooks insufficient for our vessels to

navigate, or to bays inapplicable, as harbors, for
refitting.””  On the 23th of April, he met Captain
Gray, In the ship Columbia, from Boston, and was

informed by him that he had ‘¢ been off the mouth
of a river in the latitude of 46° 10", where the out-
sct or reflux was so sreat as to prevent his entering
for nine days.”” And Yineouver adds: ¢ This was
probably the opening passed by us on the fore-
noon of the 27th, and was apparently inaccessible,
not from the current, but from the brealers that
extended acrossit.”’—Vol. 2, page 43.  Notwith-
standing this communication by Gray, Vancouver,
relying on his own examinations, still remained
of the opinion (and he so records it) that, ** if any
inlet or river should be found, it must be a very in-
tricate one, and inaceessible to vessels of our bur-
den, owing to the rcefs, broken water,” &¢.; and
he concludes that he was ¢ thoroughly convinced’’
that he could * not possibly have passed any safe
navigable opening, hiarbor, or place of security for
shipping on this coast, from Cape Mendocino to
the promontory of Classet,” the entrance of the
Strait of Fuca.—Vol. 2, pages 58 and 59.*

*The tollowing extracts from Vancouver’s Voyage illus-
trate more tully the posilions assumed in the text:

¢ On the south side of this promontory was the appear-
ance of an inket or small river, the land behind not in
cating it to be of any great extent; nor did it scen: acees
ble fur vessels of our burden, as the breakers extende
from the above point two or three miles into the ocean, until
they joined those on the beach nearly tour leagues further
south.”—JPancourer’s Journed, voi. 3, page 34.

This he states to be in 46° 19",

“The sea had now changed from its natural to river-
colored water; the probuble consequence of some streams
falling into the bay, or into the ocean to the north of it,
throuzin the low land.  Not considering this opening worthy
of more attention, I continued our pursuit,” &ec.—Ibid.

¢ The several large rivers and capacious inlcts that have
becn deseribed as discharging their contents into the Pacifie,
between the forticth and forty-eighth degrees of north lati-
tude, were reduced to brooks insuflicient for our vessels
te, or 1o bays inapplicable, as harbors, for rufitting.””

nivid
—Ihid. pauge 41
 He [Captain Geay] likewise informed them of his hav-

ing been ofi the mouth of a river in the latitude of 46° 107,
where the outlet or reflux was «o strong as to prevent his
entering for nine days. This was probably the opening
passed by us on the forenoon of the 27tlt, and was apparently
nac ible, not fromn the current, but from the treakers
that extended across it.”—Jid., puze 43.

¢ The thick, rainy weather permitted us to see litde of the
country. Yot we were enabled to ascertain that this coast,
like that whirli we have hitherto explored irom Cape Men-
docino, wa~ firm and compact, withoutany opening into the
mediterranean seau, as stated, in latitude 47° 45; or the least
appearance of a safe or secure harbor, either in that latitude
or from it to Cape Mrndocinos notwithstanding that, in
that ~paee. veographers have thought it expedient to furnish
many."—Iid., page 44,

Vancouver states that his inquiries had been lately em-
ployed under the most favorable circurustances of wind and
weather, and that the surf had const been seen from the
mast-bead. He then adds: ¢ The river Mr. Gray men-
tioncd =hould, fromn the latitude he assigned to it, have ex-
istence in the bay south of Cape Di-appointineut,. This we
passed on the forenoon of th cand, as I then observed,
if any inlet or river shauld he found, it must be a very in-
tricate one, and inaccessible to vessels of our burden
owing to the reefs and Lroken water which then nppcnrr(i
in its neizhboriood.  Mr. Gray stated that he bad been sev-
eral days attempting to cnter it, which he was unable to
effect, in consequence of a very strong outlet. This is a
phenomenon difficult to account for, as, in most cuses,
where there are outlets of such strength ona seacoast, there
are corresponding tides setting in.  Be that, however, as it
may, I was thoroughly convinced, as were also most per-
sons of observation on board, that we could not possibly
have passed any safe navigable opening, liarbor, or place of
sceurity for shipping on this coast, from Cape Mendocino
to the promontory of Classet; nor had we any reason to
alter our opinions, notwi ding that th ical geog-
raphers have thought proper to assert, in that space, the
existence of arms of the ocean communicating with a medj~
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Only eight days after parting with Vaneouver,
Gray discovered Bulfinch’s Harbor, between the
mouth of the Columbia and the Strait of Fuea, amd
remained three days in it. On the 11th May, 1792,
the day after he left Bulfineh’s Harbor, he saw, to
use his own words, *“the entrance of our desired
port,” and in a few hours was anchored in “alarge
Triver of fresh water,”” as he terms it, to which he
gave the name of the Columbia. He remained in
the river nine days, and sailed, as he states, more
than twenty miles up the channel from the bar at
its entrance. Thus was verified the conjecture of
Heceta, who, seventeen years befure, saw an
opening in the coast, which on the Spanish_ maps
was called the river St. Roc. DMeares and Van-
couver had asserted, in the most positive manner,
their conviction that no such river existed; yet
when the fact was clearly ascertained by Captain
Gray, who had given copies of his charts to Quad-
ra, the Spanish commander at Nootka, Vancouver,
having procured copies from the latter, sent Lieu-
tenant Broughton to examine the river, and take
formal possession of it. Broughton not only per-
formed both these services, but, for the purpose of
earning for himself the reputation of a discoverer,
he labored, in his account of his expedition, to
rob Captain Giray of the merit of discovering the
river, by the unworthy device of drawing a dis-
tinction” between the bay in which it debouches
and the upper part of the stream  Public opinion
has rejected this unmanly attempt; and Captain
Gray 1s admitted by all fair-minded men to have
been the first person who entered the river and
solved the doubt which had long prevailed with
regard to its existence, while Vancouver, twelve
days before the discovery, had not hesitated to
deny, on the strength of his own personal exam-
ination, made ¢ under the most favorable cir-
cumstances of wind and weather,”” to use his own
language, that no such great river existed. This
attempt on the part of Broughton is the more
unmanly, from the fact that he actually entered
the mouth of the Columbia with the aid of Giray's
chart. I am disposed to acquit Vancouver, in a
great degree, from all participation in the odium of
this act. The account of the examin:tion of the
Columbia by Broughton, contained in Vaneonver’s
Journal, though in the language of the latter, is,
in fact, a report made by Broughton, the com-
mander of the party, as may be scen by reference
to the Journal, volume 3, paze R5. Vancouver
more than once recognises Gray distinctly as the
discoverer of the Columbia. At page 388, volume
2, he expresses the hope that he may be able, in
his route to the southward, to ¢ re-examine the
coast of New Albion, and particularly a river and

terranean sea and extensive rivers, with safe and conve-
nient poits.  These ideas, not derived from any source of
substantial information, have, it is mnch to be feared, been
adopted for the sole purpose of giving unlimited credit to
the traditions and exploits of ancient foreigners, and to un-
dervalue the laborious and enterprising exertinns of our own
countrymen in the noble science of discovery.”’—Ibid.,
page 59,

Captain Gray, it appears, had also made discoveries as
high as the northern boundary of the territory in dispute,
and even beyond it. Vancouver says: ¢ He had also en-
tered another inlet to the northward, in latitude 54° 30, in
which he had sailed to the latitude of 56°, avithout discover-
ing its termination.”—Ibid., page 43.

T'his was probably what is now known as the Portland
canal. I have not alluded to this fact in the text, though it
rests on Vaneouver’s report of Gray’s statement.

a harbor discovered by Mr. Gray, in the Colum-
bia, between the 46th and 47th degrecs of north lat-
itude, of which Seiior Quadra had favored me with
a sketch.” At page 393, same volume, he says
he directed that “ Mr. Whidbey, taking one of the
Discovery’s hoats, should proceed in the Deedalus
to examine Gray’s Harbor, said to be situated in
latitude 46° 53', whilst the Chatham and Discov-
ery explored the river Mr. Gray had discovered in
the latitude of 460 10,

The explorations of Vancouver, though they re-
sulted in a minute and critical examination of the
shores of the Strait of Fuea, led to the discovery
of no new territory; and it is a singular fact, that
while this naval officer of Great Britain, himself
an accomplished navigator, furnished with all the
means of making scientific investigations, was pur-
suing the examinations which were the great pur-
pose of his expedition, Captain Gray, in a trading
vessel, and in the prosecution of commercial ob-
jects alone, discovered the only two important
apenings, the Columbia river and Bulfineh’s Har-
hor, on the northwest coast, from the 40th to the
3t paraliel of latitude, where Vancouver, after
the most eritical survey, had discovered none.

It is indeed an extraordinary circumstance that
the existence of all the great inlets in the coast, to
which Great Britain now lays claim on the ground
of discovery, was strenuously denied by the navi-
eators in her public service, until those inlets were
discovered and made known by others, 'We have
seen what Vancouver said in relation to the coast
between the 40th and 45th parallels of latitude. On
the 22d of March, 1774, Captain Cook was in lati-
tude 48° 15, inspeeting the coast. The promonto-
ry of Classet, (vr Cape Flattery, as he denomina-
ted it,) the southern cape at the entrance of the
Strait of Juan de¢ Fuea, was in full view, and but
a few miles distant. Hcar what he says in rela-
tion to the strait:

«Itis in this very latitude where we now were
¢ that geographers have placed the pretended Strait
¢ of Juan de Fuca. But we saw nothing like it;
¢ nor is there the least probability that any such
¢ thing ever existed.””—Cook’s Third Voyage, vol.
2, p. 263.

Now, however, Great Dritain claims the whole
strait and the adjoining country by Vancouver’s
discovery, thouzh he himself admits (as we shall
see) that the Spaniards had surveyed and mapped
a portion of it before he arrived on the northwest
coast.

In the letter of the British Plenipotentiary, Mr.
Pakenham, of the 29th of July last, the following
passage will be found at page 67, documents ac-
companying the President’s Message:

¢ {n 1792, Vancouver, who had been sent from
¢ Encland to witness the fulfilment of the above-
¢ mentioned enzagement, [the restitution of build-
¢ s, &o., at Nootka, which, as has already been
¢ seen, were not to be found,}and to effect a survey
¢ of the northwest coast, departing from Nootka
¢« Sound entered the Straits of Fuca; and after
< an accurate survey of the coasts and inlets on
¢ both sides, discovered a passage northwards into
¢the Pacific, by which he returned to Nootka,
¢having thus circumnavigated the island which
¢ now bears his name. And here we have, as far
¢ ag relates to Vancouver's Island, as complete a
¢ case of discovery, exploration, and settlement, as
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¢ can well be presented, giving to Great Britain, in
¢ any arrangement thot may be made with regard
¢tothe territory in dispute, the strongest possible
¢ claim to the exclusive possession of the [sland.”

To repel this assumption, the grounds of which
the disunguished British Plenipotentiary appears
not to have sufficiently fnvestigated, M. Buchanan
briefly referred to previous examinations by the
Spaniards. I now procced to show, by Vancouver
himself, that the assumption is entirely unsustained
by the facts,

In the first place, let me correct an error into
which Mr. Pakenham has fallen at the outset, in
saying that Vancouver, “ departing from Nootka
Sound,”* surveyed the Straits of Fuca, circumnavi-
gated the island which bears his name, and then
returned to Nootka. Sir, Vancouver had never
seen Nootka Sound when he surveyed the Straits
of Fuca. He entered the straits on the 29th of
April, the evening of the day he met Captain Gray,
and proceeded immediately to survey them,as inay
be seen by his Journal, vol. 2, pages 40 and 52.
He arrived at Nootka for the first time on the 25ih
of August, four months afterwards—page 334,
same volume. This correction is only important
as repelling the inference which might have been
drawn from the fact, if it had been as stated by
Mr. Pakenham, that Vaneouver had been previ-
ously established at Nootka, and had departed
from it, as from a rcgular station, on a voyage of
exploration to the Straits of Fuca.

But there are more important errors to be cor.
rected.

‘While Vancouver was surveying the Strait of
Fuca, and the extensive inland waters connected
with it, Galiano and Valdes, two Spanish officers,
sent out from Nootka Sound, were engaged in the
same service. The two parties met on the 22d of
June, about the middle of the strait, near Point
Grey, ahove Frazer’s river, and proceeded to-
gether northerly, uniting their labors, and sur-
veying its shores to a point near the extremity of
the Isfand of Quadra and Vaneouver, between the
50th and the 51st degree of north latitude, where
they separated. And here I desire to call the special
attention of the Senate to the Journal of Vancouver,
who states that Sefior Galiano, who spoke a little
English, informed him ¢ that they had arrived at
Nootka on the 11th of April, from whence they had
sailed on the 5th of this month,” (June,) ¢ in order
to complete the examination of this inlet, which
had, in the preceding year, been partly surveyed
by some Spanish officers, whose chart they pro-
duced.”” Observe, sir, the inlet (i. e. the Strait
of Fuca,) about latitude 50°, partly surveyed and
mapped a year before Vancouver came on the
coast. Vancouver then continues, (p 210, v. 2:)

T cannot avoid acknowledging that, on this oc-
¢ easion, I experienced no small degree of mortifi-
¢ cation, in finding the external shores of the gulf
‘had been visited, and already examined a fuw
“miles beyond where my researches during the
¢ excursion had extended, making the land I had
¢ been in doubt about, an island; continuing nearly
¢ in the same direction about four leagues further
¢ than had been seen by us, and by the Spaniards
¢ named Favida, [Feveda.]”

By turning back to page 204, vol. 2, it will ap-
pear that Vancouver’s examination terminated at
50° 6 north latitude; so that the Spaniards, before

his arrival, by his own acknowledgment, had ex-
amined the Strait of Fuca to a point north of that

arallel; and by turning to page 249, vol. 2, it will
Ee seen that, on parting with Sefior Galiano, the
Jatter furnished him with ¢ a copy of his survey
and other particulars relative to the inlet of the
sen, which contained also that part of the neigh-
boring coast extending northwestward from the
Straits of De Fuca, beyond Nuotka, to the latitude
of 57 3, longitude 2320 457

What, then, becomes of this complete ¢ case of
discovery, exploration, and settlement,’” in respect
to Quadra and Vancouver’s Island, and the Strait
of Fucai It ix proved by Vancouver himself
that the Spaniards had partially surveyed and
mapped the shores of the strait a3 high as 500 a
year before he arrived on the coast. And if we
turn to his Journal, vol. 2, page 339, it will be seen
that Galiano and Valdes arrived at Nootka on the
1st of Secptember, three days after him, by a
< route through Queen Charlotte’s Sound,” round
the northern point of the island, ¢ to the southward
of that which we had navigated,” and of course
following its shores more closely than he. * The
strongest possible claim to the exclusive posses-
sion of the island,” to use Mr. Pakenham’s lan-
«uace, is not, therefore, as he asserts, in Great
Dritain; but, as shown by Vancouver himself, it
was in Spain then, and is in us now.

But, sir, [ have a word to say in relation to the
whole subject of Vancouver’s explorations.

Tt would scem that the Spaniards, in the autumn
of 1793, had become distrustful of Vancouver’s
abjects in the survey of the northwest coast. At
the bay of St. Francisco, although he had every-
where before been treated with a civility by the
Spaniards, for which his Journal abounded in ex-
pressions of gratitude, he was subjected to restric-
tions, which he denominates ¢ unexpected, ungra-
cious, and degrading.’”’ On his arrival at Mon.
terey on the 1st of November, the Spanish com-
mander, Arrillaga, declined holding any verbal
communication with him, but addressed to him
questions in writing as to the objects of his voyage;
to which Vancouver promptly replied—

¢« That the voyage in which we were engaged
¢ was for the general use and benefit of mankind,
¢and that, under these circumstances, we ought
¢ rather to be considered as laboring for the good
“of the world in general, than for the advantage of
¢ any particular sovereign, and that the Conrt of
¢ Spain would be more early informed, and as
¢ much benefited by my labors, as the kingdom of
¢ Great Britain.”’—Vol. 4, p. 309.*

*The correspondence bhetween Vancouver and Scfior
Arrillaga, as reported by the former, though too long to be
inserted here, is well worth a perusal. On landing, Van-
couver called on the Spanish commandant, and was pre-
paring to state his reasons for having entered the_ports un-
der his government, when, as he says, ¢ he [Scfior Arril-
laga] stopped me from proceeding further, and begged that
the suhject might be referred to a written correspondence,
by which mode he conceived matters would he more fully
explained.”” In the aftermoon a Spanish officer went on
board Vancouver’s vessel, and delivered him two letters
from the Spanish commandant. < The tenor of these let-
ters (says Vancouver] being very different from what my
conversation with Sefior Arrillaga had given me reason to
expect when [ visited him at the Presidio, I was reduced to
the necessity of sending him the next day (Saturday, the 2d)
a full explanation of the objects of our voyage and of the
motives that had induced me to enter the ports under his
jurisdictivn.”” The substance of this explanation is givenin
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Here is the confession of Vancouver himself,
that there was no intention of interfering with the
territorial rights of Spain, and that wo special ad-
vantages were sought for by Great Britain. Tt is
the highest evidence, the evidence of cotempora-
neous exposition, "qistt the claims of the British
Plenipotentiary, and it demolishes the whole fabric
of the British title, so far as it is built on Van-
couver’s explorations.

‘While on this part of the subject, T desire also
to call the attention of the Scnate to the manner in
which the Oregon question has been discussed in
the British Parliament by some of the most distin-

ished members of both branches of that hody.
levish to do so, for the purpose of correcting great
inaccuracies, and also for the purpose of showing
how imperfectly the subject appears to be under-
stood by those who, from their elevated positions,
are under the strongest moral obligations to pos-
sess themselves of the truth, in order that the pub-
lic mind of Great Britain may not be misled and
inflamed on their high authority.

In the House of Lords, on the 4th of April last,
immediately after the reception of the President’s
inaugural speech, the subject was brought forward
by the Earl of Clarendon, not in the usual form of
a call on her Majesty’s Ministers for information,
but in pursuance of a notice which he had given
on the preceding day of his design to invite the
attention of the House to the question. In the
course of his remarks, he undertook to give a
sketch of the claims of Gireat Britain and the Uni-
ted States to the territory of Oregon. [ shall,in
respect to the former, quote his own words from
the London Times, a source to which we may
confidently look for an accurate report of his lord-
ship’s remarks. I shall confine myself strictly to
the question of title in all I have to say in refer-
ence to these debates, avoiding carefully all allu-
sion to the offensive language with which they
were in some instances connected:

“In the first place, my Lords, if priority of dis-
‘covery could constitute title, our claim would
¢ be unquestionable; for Sir Francis Drake, when
¢ he first visited that country in 155%, found all the
¢ land unappropriated, and took possession of it,
¢ giving it the title of New Albion. I donotmean
fto say that this constitutes a claim; but owing,
¢ subsequently, to a seizure of British vessels at
¢ Nootka, and to a dispute which arose in conse-
‘ quence, it was arranged by the treaty of the Ils-
¢ curial that the subjects of ‘the contracting parties
¢ should not be molested in fishing and making
¢ settlements in parts not hitherto oceupicd. In
‘1792, the country adjacent to the Columbia river
¢ was taken possession of by Cook, and was ex-
¢ plored in 1813 by the Northwestern Company,
‘now called the Hudson Bay Company, who es-
‘ tablished themselves in Port St. &EOI'&;E, under
‘the government of British laws, continuing to
‘the present day, and being the first establish-
‘ment in that country of a lawful and national
‘character, and recognised as such by foreign
¢ States.”

the extract in the text, denying the intection of lahoring
¢ for the advantage of any particular sovereign.’’ And it
was s0 satisfactory that, as Vancouver says, ¢ On Monday,
the 4th, I received a letter from Seiior Arrillega in reply to
my letter, in which he was pleased to compliment me upon
my ingenuousness,” &c,

In the paragraph I have read, there are nume-
rous crrors in the statement of facts, and T must
ask the indulgence of the Senate while T point
some of them out.

1. Sir Francis Drake arvived on the northwest
const of America in 1579, and not in 1558, as sta-
ted by Lord Clarendon, making a difference of
twenty-one years in point of time,  If this error of
date, which may possibly be typographical, were
the only ane, I should not have troubled the Senate
with any reference to it. But there are graver
misapprehensions in this statement. 1t will be
seen, that thouch Lord Clarendon docs not ven-
ture to refer to Sir Francis Drake’s visit to the
northwest coast as constituting a title of itself, he
presents it as evidence of *¢ priority of discovery.”
Sir, that navigator can, in 10 just sense, be said to
have visited the disputed territory of which Lord
Clarendon was speaking. The territory commences
at the 42d parallel of latitude, and runs north to
540 4(’. Sir Francis Drake landed at 380. He
sailed along the coast north of this parallel, accord-
inv to the best authorities, only as high as 439. Nor
can his visit, in any juxt sense, be recarded as a
discovery. The country, including the bay of St.
Francisco where he landed, was previously known,
It had been seen thirty years before as high as the
43d parallel by Ferrelo, who was sent out by the
Viceroy of Mexiro, for the express purpose of ex-
ploring and extending the dominion of Spain over
it; and it was taken posscssion of at or near the
very point where Druke landed, and at various
others, long hefore the Government of Great Brit-
ain claimed any right of possession, growing out
of this pretended discovery, and the visits of her
navizatars to the northwest coast.

Besides, Drake’s expedition was in the nature
of a piratical cnterprixe, and not an enterprise of '
legitimate warfare, England and Spain were at
peace. Itis true, the two sovereiens, Elizabeth
and Philip, were engaged in wecret plots against
cach other—the former by fomenting disturbances
in the Low Countries, and the latter by setting on
foot rehellions in Treland; but it was several years
later hefure these intrigues broke out into the open
hostility, of which the chief incident was the de-
struction of the invincihle Armada. (Sir, the con-
tradiction of terms is the work of history, not
mine.} Yot Elizabeth, afier Drake’s return to
England, on the applieation of the Spanish ambas-
sador complaining of his piracies, restored‘ a por-
tion of the booty he had taken, and by this resti-
tution admitted the unlawfulness of his expedition.
Tt is only necessary to look into Hume to see in
what light it has always been viewed by the eye
of legitimate history. Sir, it should need some
boldness, one would think, to set up a claim even
to * priority of discovery® on the basis of a trans-
action like this. .

9. Lord Clarendon states that the country adja-
cent to the Calumbia river was taken possession of
in 1792 by Captain Cook. Sir, Captain Cook never
gaw the Columbia river, or !andeq_i in the immedi-
ately-adjacent country. His visit was to Nootka
Sound, on the island of Quadra and Vancouver,
separated from the continent by the Strait of Fuca,
His voyage is referred by Lord Qlaren:ljon to the
year 1792. It was, in fuct, made in 1778, fourteen
years before the Columbia river was entered or
even certainly known to exist, Ten years after
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Cook’s voyage to the coast, Meares, on whose ex-
plorations "the British Government partially rests
1ts title, reported he could say with certainty, no
such river as the St. Roc (the Columbia) existed.
Four years later still, Vancouver, after a most
careful examination of the coast, came to the same
conclusion, as we have seen. Sir, Lord Claren-
don evidently confounded the voyage of Cook with
that of Vancouver, without an accurate reference
to either.

3. It is equally erroncous to say, that the North-
west Company explored the country in 1813, and
established themselves in Port St. George. Ex-
plorations had been made, firstby Lewisand Clarke,
military officers in the service of the United States,
and then by Thompson and others, in the service
of the British and American Fur companies. But
no particular explorations, I believe, were made
in the year referred to. The stock and property
of the American Company at Astoria were sold to
the Northwest Company in that year; but the
place was restored to the United States in 1818,
and no attempt was made by the Government of
Great Britain to extend its laws over any part of
the territory until 1821, eight yeurs after the time
at which Lord Clarendon represents Astoria as
being under the government of British laws, hav-
ing the character of a national establishment of
Great Britain, and recognised as such by foreign
nations.  Sir, it has never possessed such a nation-
al character, or been so recognised. If his lord-
ship had taken the trouble to Iook at the statement
of the British commissioners, (Messrs. Huskisson
and Addington,) in 1826, he would have found
they distinctly denied that it was a ‘“ national pos-
session”” or a ““military post” in the hands of the
Americans; and they endeavored to show by ar-
§1ment that it was not such in the hands of the

orthwest Comipany after its purchase. Its res-
toration to us in 1813 is incompatible with the as-
sumption that it has such a national character now.
The assumption is equally inconsistent with the
conditions of the treaties between Great Britain
and the United States, which virtually preclude
such an exclusive exercise of sovereignty on her
part as to give any establishments made by her
subjects a character of nationality. Nay, sir, it
is inconsistent with the claims of Great Britain
herself, whose commissioners, in 1526, expressly
renounced all pretensions to a right of exclusive
sovereignty over any portion of the Oregon terri-
tory. It is difficuli to fancy a paragraph of as
many words so replete with error as the one on
which I am commenting.

I regret to say that the subject was presented to
the House of Commons with, if possible, still
sn;eqter misrepresentations, and from an equally

istinguished source; though I might not have felt
myself called on to notice them, but for their con-
nexion with the incidents I have been examining,
and particularly the question of title.

The subject was introduced into the House of
Commons by Lord John Russell, much in the
same manner as it was presented to the House of
Lords—not in the shape of a call for information,
but in the nature of a protest against some of the
positions taken by the President in his inaugural
speech. This gentleman is a distinguished mem-
ber of the Whig party, a member of a former Min-
istry, and was recently called on by her Majesty

to form another, but did not succeed. I will now
read to the Senate that part of his lordship’s re-
marks which relates to the discovery of the Co-
lumbia river, one of the principal historical facts
on which the United States rest their claim to the
Oregon territory: .

“Now, it appears that Captain Vancouver was
¢sent out by the British Government to discover
¢ the line of coast, and to take possession of cer-
* tain parts laid down in his instructions; and here
“we come to another part of the claims of the
¢ United States—to a part of their claims where
¢ they put in their claim to discovery upon a trans-
“action which I will now proceed to relate. Itap-
¢ pears that a merchant vessel, called the Colum-
¢ bia, under a Captain Gray, discovered an inlet,
¢ which was supposed to bé an inlet of a river. It
‘appears that, after some days, in the month of
¢ May, 1792, passed partly at anchor, and partly
¢in endeavoring to ascertain the limits of that bay,
¢ this vessel sailed out again into the Pacific ocean.
¢ There is a very clear account given by Captain
¢ Gray, the commander of that vessel, that, ¢ after
¢ some days,” he says, ¢ we thought we had found
¢a channel, but found we were mistaken. There
¢is no channel in the part which we endeavored to
¢ penetrate, and therefore we must return.” Short-
¢ly afier this, Captain Vancouver arrived on the
¢coast. He not only went into the same inlet, but
¢ he sent his lieutenant—a Lieutenant Broughton—
‘10 discover the river, and to go in a boat to a dis-
“tance up the river. Lieutenant Broughton was
¢ more successful than Captain Gray. He actually
¢discovered the entrance of the Columbia river.
¢ He went up itin his boat several days, to the dis-
¢ tance, I think, of some 90 or 100 miles. He dis-
¢ covered the territory surrounding it. Tt was
¢ agreed that the river should be called by the name
¢ of Columbia, and Lieutenant Broughton returned
‘to his ship. But Captain Vancouver took pos-
¢ sessinn of that river, the coast adjacent, and the
¢ Nootka Sound, in the name of his Majesty the
‘ King of England. (Hear, hear.) Then, sir, there
¢ was something of valid title.”

I confess it was with equal regret and surprise
that I read this statement of a transaction which
has become matter of history, and in respect to the
facts of which there is no reasonable ground for
serious misconception. I have looked 1n vain for
the quotation Lord John Russell professes to make
from Captain Gray. There is no such statement
in the only account which I have seen given by the
latter of the discovery of the Columbia river—the
certified copy of his log in the State Department.
Hislordship goes on to state that Vancouver shortly
after arriveg on the coast, and not only went into
the inlet, but sent in Lieutenant Broughton, “who
actually discovered the entrance to the Columbia
river.” Now, the Senate will observe that, in or-
der to sustain this most unauthorized assumption,
almost all the important facts relating to the dis-
covery of the Cilumbia river—facts shown by Van-
couver’s own Journal—are kept out of view: the
meeting of Gray with Vancouver on the 29th
April, 1792, five months previously, near the Strait
of Fuca; the information given by Gray to the lat-
ter of the discovery of the river, and of his unsuc-
cessful attempts to enter it; the incredulity of Van-
couver, and ﬁis continued conviction that no such
river existed; the return of Gray to the river, his
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success in entering it; the arrival of Vancouver at
Nootka, where he obtained copies of Gray’s charts
left with Quadra, by the aid of which, Vancouver
was enabled to find the stream, and send up his lieu-
tenant, Broughton, to explore it. I say, sir, all
these material facts are suppressed—1I trust not in-
tentionally—to sustain the unfounded assumption
that Broughton was the discoverer of the Columbia.
But it is worthy of remark that Mr. Falconer, a
respectable British writer, who has recently pub-
lished a pamphlet on Oregon, and who wrote about
the time Lord John Russell spoke, admits that
Gray was the first person who noticed the Colum-
bia river after Heceta, and concedes the discovery
to the latter. Happily the historical facts are too
well authenticated to be permanently misunder-
stood. They were so well known at the time, that
even the rivalry—not to say the detraction—of the
day conceded to Grray the merit of the discovery
by designating the river by the name he gave it—
the name of the vesscl that first entered 1ts waters.
In regard to the attempt to restrict Gray’s discov-
ery to the bay or mouth of the river, it is only ne-
cessary to say that the settlement at Astoria is uni-
versally admitted to be on the Columbia river. Is
it not so, sir? It is designated ** the settlement on
the Columbia river,” in the despatch of Earl Ba-
thurst directing it to be restored to us in I181%, as
well as in the act of restoration. Now, sir, Cap-
tain Gray ascended the river not only as high as
Astoria, which Is ten miles from the Pacific ocean,
bhut at least six miles above it, according to Brough-
ton himself. Look at the map of Oregon on your
table, by Captain Wilkes, and you will find Gray s
bay, so named by Broughton, (see Vancouver's
Journal, vol. 3, page 92,) on the north side of the
Columbia and higher up than Astoria. According
to Gray’s own log, he anchored, the day he discov-
ered and entered the river, ten miles above the en-
trance, and three days after he sailed twelve or fif-
teen miles higher up. He must, therefore, have
been from six to fifteen miles above the site of the
settlement at Astoria. What, then, beeomes of
the attempt of Broughton, revived by Britixh states-
men, not negotiators, (no negotiator at this day
would so risk his reputation,) to restrict Gray's
discovery to the mouth of the stream!

Lord John Russell’s statement is equally erro-
neous in other particulars—erroneous in saying
that Vancouver entered the Columbia, or the inlet—
erroneous 1n saying that he took possession of
Nootka Sound.” His vesscl, the Discovery, did
not pass the bar at the mouth of the Colunhia
river; he did not take possession of Nootka: Qua-
dra refused to make a formal surrender of anything
but Meares’s Cove, which he would not aceepit: and
the formality of taking possession of the Columbia
river was performed by Broughton, after Vancou-
ver had left the coast, much in the same way as it
had been done years before by the Spaniards,
who were the first discoverers and explorers of the
country. I repeat, and I say it with regret, that,
besides the errors in point of fuct, the leading and
material circumstances connected with the discov-
ery of the Columbia river are kept out of view. I
do not expect British statesmen to produce argu-
ments in favor of the American title; but when
they undertake to refer to historical facts, resting
on their own authorities, and in their own posses-
sion, they are bound to state them with accuracy.

Sir, we may excuse illogical deductions from ad-
mitted data; we may look with indulgence on dif-
ferences of opinion in regard to the same facts,
knowing, as we do, our liability to be biased by
prejudice or by too partial views of personal or
national intcrest.  But for an omission of essential
circumstances in the discussion of an important
national question—a discusion entered upon volun-
tarily for the purpose of enlightening the public
mind of a nation—there can be no apology, even
though it arise from a want of a sutficiently careful
examination of the subject. On the Oregron ques-
tion it is well known that great excitement existed
at the time in CGiveat Britun and the United States
—an excitement which exists still, though happily
somewhat abated—an excitement which needs,
perhaps, but little provocation to break out into
open hostilities; and no man, who appreciates as
he ought the calamity of an interruption of the
amicable relations which exist between us, should
be willing to incur the responsibility of misleading
the public judzment of either country; or if he does
misdirect 1t, he should at least have the consola-
tion of reflecting that it was through erroneous de-
ductions, and not a misstatement of facts fairly
within his knowledge.

Tlie misrepresentations to which I have alluded
are the more to be regretted, for the reason, if I
do not err, that they constitute almost the only
views of the subject which reach the great mass
of the British people. In this country, statements
of hoth sides of great national questions are equally
diffused. Look at our newspapers, and they will
be found filled with the diplomatic correspondence
between the British and American Plenipoten-
tiaries. The litters of Mr, Pakenham are pub-
lished with those of Mr. Calhoun and Mr. Bu-
chanan, and are as widcly circulated. All read,
compare, ainl judge them.” It is not so in Great
Britain,  Ax a general rule, the British side of the
question only is presented to the British public.
Nor is it the official arcument of the Gover iment,
drawn up by the diplomatist, under a sense of his
responsibility to the eriticism of other nations, and
the general judgment of mankind.  No, sir, It is
more frequently the ¢ tirade’ of the politician, by
which the public mind of Great Britain is made to
pronounce judziment upon great questions of inter-
national right and duty. .

These misrepresentations are still more to be
regretted, because they constitute the basis of the
statentents which find their way to the continent,
Through Galicnani’s Messeuger, the echo of the
British press, they are translated into French, and
widely circulated, poisening the whole public mind
of the continent, and exciting prejudice against
19

-

I will only add, that the Earl of Aherdeen in one
house, and Sir Robert Peel in the other, adverted
to these statements in a manner which, though
not altogether unexceptionahle, was in general
dignified and statesmanlike; and it is earnestly to
he hoped that the better feeling which now exists
between the two countries may continue unabated,
and lead to a settlement of the question on terms
honorable to both.

I feel that I owe an apology to the Senate for
this long digression. I trust it will be found in
the consideration, that the imaccuracies I have en-

deavored to point out did not go to the world with
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the mere weight of an ordinary legislative debate,
but with all the evidences of deliberation and ar-
rangement; and, therefore, caleulated to be more
dangerous in propagating error.

[It was now three o’clock, and Mr. D. gave way
to a motion of

Mr. SEVIER, that the Senate adjourn.

The Senate accordingly adjourned.

Tuurspay, February 19, 1846.

Mr. DIX was about to resume his remarks
which he had not concluded at the hour of adjourn-
ment yesterday, but yielded the floor to

Mr. J. M. CLAYTON, who said he desired an
orpormnily to offer a few remarks relative to an
allusion made to him by the Senator from New
York, [Mr. Dix,] in the opening of his speech
yesterday. He is reported to have said:

¢ In entering into the debate on the question un-
¢ der consideration, I feel constrained to differ in
¢opinion with two distinguished Senators who
¢ have preceded me, in relation to the manner in
¢ which the discussion should be conducted. T al-
¢ lude to the Scnator from Ohio, [Mr. ArLex,] who
¢ opened the debare, and the Scnator from Dela-
¢ ware, [Mr. J. M. Cravtox,) who followed him
¢ not now in his seat. Doth took the ground, and
¢ with equal peremptoriness, that the tilTo tu Oregon
¢ ought not to be discussed, but for totally different
¢ reasons—the Senator from Ohio, because the
¢ time for discussing it had gone by, and the Sena-
¢ tor from Delaware, because the time for discus-
¢ sing it had not arrived. With the unfeigned re-
¢ spect which I entertain {ir them, I dissent from
¢ their opinion with great diffidence of my own.”
' As the Scnator said, he (M. C.) was tempo-
rarily absent from his seat, but came in a few min-
utes after the Senator had made that remark., He
had mistalen his (Mr. €.%s) poxition.  'When he
had the honor of addressing the Senate on the 12th
instant, he did object to the discussion of the title
in open scssion, but he avowed distinctly at the
time his perfert willingness to enter at any moment
on that discussion in executive session, He did
not mean to say, nor did he think that he was
generally understood at the tine as meaning to
say, that he objected to the discussion of the ques-
tion at that very moment, On the contrary, he
thought that he expressed his willingness to go
into it then, if his associates in the Senat: wished
to do so-—but in executive session. And he beg-
ged the Senator to recollect the reason which he
assigned “hX the disrussion should be so conduct-
ed. He said that, if the question were to be set-
tled by treaty between the two Governments, the
remarks made in open session were calculated to
prejudge, and must necessarily prejudge, the
question which would arise upon the treaty. He
thought then, and he thought so still, that if the

uestion were to be settled in that manner, great
3unger might arise from these public discussions,
because it would be recollected that it took but
nineteen of them to defeat any treaty; and if the
discussion became extended, as was very lilely,
.there was danger that nineteen Senators might be-
come so committed before the whole country in
regard to the title, and diflering from the Execu-
tive, why, then, was it not obvious that their con-

melled? On the other hand, he thought then, and
thought still, that if discussed in executive session,
no such difficulty could oceur; no man would be
then committed before the country. But open
discussion was attended with the danger of so
many men commitiing themselves on some paral-
lel of latitude different from that presented in the
treaty. i
If the Senator would pardon him a few mo-
ments longer, be would make a single reference to
a remark which fell from the honorable Senator
from Indiana, {Mr. Hannecan.] He seemed to
apprehend that there was greater danger of stran-
gling Oregon in that chamber than elsewhere.
How so? He (Mr. C.) could not possibly com-
rehend that. 1f the title to Oregon be clear—if it
ge such a title as the country could stand up for
and fight for—it was one that would bear discus-
sion in executive session as well as anywhere else,
and the only difference was, that it would be much
more safely discussed in executive session than in
open session. The honorable Senator, however,
at the conclusion of his eloquent address, seemed
to apprehend that if the Senate took the responsi-
bility of discussing this question in secret session,
perliaps some Caius Gracchus might drive us from
our seats, and forcibly expel our President from
his elevated seat.

Mr. HANNEGAN. If the Senator from Dela-
ware will allow me, I will restate what T uttered in
this particular, and a misreport of which was given
in both the Union and Intelligencer, so gross as to
be ridiculous.

AMr. J. M. CLAYTON yielded the floor, when

Mr. H. said, that the language he uttered was,
that the withdrawal of so momentous a question
from the public eye for secret deliberation and dis-
cussion, to be followed—as perchance it might be—
by a silent and sudden death of the measure in di-
réet violation of the will of three-fifths of the Amer-
ican people, would be a most serious, if nota mel-
ancholy hour in the history of the country. It
might prelude the entrance of some Caius Gracehus
into that hitherto consecrated chamber, whose
heart, big with the fires of freedom, and roused by
such an outrage upon public rights, would lead him
to address the mighty tribunal without, and by this
simple change of attitude, (here Mr. H. pointed to
the doors of the Senate, and raised his hands to the
galleries,) turning from that venerated chair, re-
verse thenceforth the cherished forms of this body,
impair its dignity, and destroy its lofty and com-
manding atuitude.

My, CLAYTON was glad to hear that explana-
tion.]

Mr. DIX then proceeded with his remarks, and
said:

I beg the Senator from Delaware to he assured
that nothing would give me more pain than to mis-
state any Scnator on this floor; and I accept with
great pleasurc the explanation which he has made.
I desire also to say, in justice to him, as well as to
the Senator from Ohio, that 1 did not use the term
‘“‘peremptoriness’’ in referring to the manner in
which they had insisted that the question of title
ought not, in their opinion, to be discussed. I said
they had taken the position in equally strong lan-
guage.

I now resume the consideration of the important

sideration of the treaty would be seriously tram- | question on which I had the honor to address the
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Senate yesterday; and in doing so, I cannot with-
hold the expression of my sense of the kind indul-
ence which has been extended to me. T will en-
eavor to afford the Senate a substantial proof of
that sense of obligation. on my part, by bringing
my remarks to a close in the briefest possible pe-
riod of time.

The historical sketch which T was making of
the discoveries and establishments in Oregon, when
the Senate adjourned yesterday, ended with the
year 1792.

The discovery of Bulfinch’s Farbor and the
Columbia river by Grav, and the explorations of
Galliano, Valdes, and Vancouver, in the Strait of
Fuca, in that year, terminated the series of maritime
discoveries in the disputed territvry, which had
commenced two centuries and a half before. From
that time to the present, nothing has been done on
the coast but to fill up the smaller details of the
great outline completed by the labors of these nav-
1gators.

In the same year, (1792,) Mackenzie, leaving
Fort Chippewyan, on the Athabasca lake, in the
58th parallel of latitude, and nearly midway be-
tween the Atlantic and Pacific oceans, proceeded
westward to the Rocky mountains, where he pass-
ed the winter. The next spring, he resumed his
journey, struck the Tacoutche Tessee, (now Fra-
zer's river,) in the 54th parallel of latitude, and de-
scended it some 250 miles. He then continued his
course to the west, and reached the Pacificin north
latitude 520 2 —about a degree north of the island
of Q.ugidrq and Vancouver, ~ Frazer’s river, which
takes its rise near the 55th parallel of latitude, was
for nineteen years supposed to be the northern
branch of the Columbia; but in 1812, it was as-
certained by Frazer to debouch in the Strait of
Fuca, at the 49th parallel of latitude. It waters
the district of country immediately west and north
of the valley drained by the upper branch of the
Columbia. ~ This district is a part of the great sec-
tion of the nortliwest coast, bounded on the east
by the Rocky mountains, and on the west by the
Pacifie, of which the main channels of access had
been laid open by previous discoveries.

I_n 1804, Qapmins Lewis and Clarke set out on
their expedition to Oregon; and, in 1805, after
incredible hardships and labors, they established
them§el\'es on the north side of the Columbia river,
near its mouth, and subsequently on the south sire,
and passed the winter there. In the spring of 1806,
they commenced their journev homeward, and
reached the Mississippi in the fall of that year, hav-
ing travelled over 9,000 miles. This expedition
was fitted out under the direction of the Govern-
ment of the United States, and executed by officers
in its service at the public expense. It was under-
taken on the recommendation of the President,
communicated in a message to Congress in 1803.
One of its objects was to examine the country
watered by the Columbia river, which had been
discovered by a citizen of the United States, and it
resulted in & survey—necessarily cursory—of the
main southern branch of the river, of the principal
stream to its mouth from the junction of the latter
with it, ;.md of a portion of Clarke’s river, which

empties into the northern branch hetween the 48th
and 49th parallels of latitude. ‘This was the first
exploration of the Columbia made subsequently to
1792, when it was ascended by Gray, its discov-

erer, some twenty miles, and five months after
by a detachment from Vancouver’s party, under
Broughton, about one hundred miles, from its
mouth.

1t is also to be considered that the expedition of
Lewis and Clarke was undertaken immediately
after the cession of the territory of Louisiana to
the United States by France—a territory admitted
to include all the country drained by the Missis-
sippi and its tributarics to their head waters. It
was also the understanding at the time that it was
separated from the Briti-h possessions in North
America by the 49th parallel of latitude extended
westward from the Lake of the Waods indefinite-
ly. Mr. Monroe, in a paper presented to Lord
ITarrowby in 1801, at London, stated that it had
been so settled by commissaries appointed by
France and England under the treaty of Utrecht;
and the statement was not impugned or objected to.
I am aware that a doubt has recently been raised
as to the fact of such a line having been agreed on;
but after nearly a century and a half, it is ques-
tionalle whether an arranzement which had been
acquiesced in [Colonel Benron here added—** and
acted on'] as having becen made by the compe-
tent authority at the proper time, can be denied,
even though no authentic record of the meeting of
the commissaries can be found.* Other persons
were employed by the Government to survey the
southern portions of Louisiana; and these con-
temporaneous expediions must be regarded by
the world as a public mwnfestation of the inten-
tion of the United States to assert all the rights she
might justly claim by discovery or otherwise to
the sovereignty of the country between the Missis-
sippi and the Pacific occan.

In 1806 Mr. Frazer, an agent of the Northwest
Company, formed an establishment on Frazer’s
lnke 1n the 54th pm-nllcl of latitude; nnd' t_h]s was
the first establishment ever made by British sub-
jeets west of the Rocky mountains.

In March, 1811, the Pacific Fur Company, of
which John Jacob Astor, of New York, was the
principal, formed an establishment at Astoria, on
the south bank of the Columbia river, about ten
miles from its mouth, having first established them-
selves on the north bank; and this was the first
settlement cver made on the Columbia or in the
territory watered by that river or its tributaries,
excepting two temporary establishments 1 1809
and 1510, formed also by American citizens, which
were soon abandoned in_consequence of the diffi-
culty of obtaining provisions, and other embarrass-
ments. The Asloria company also formed an es-
tablishment in 1811, on the Okanagan, a tributary
entering the Columbia on the nqrth side, hetween
the 48th and 49th parallels of latitude; and in 1812
another near it on the Spokan, also 2 tributary of
the great river. i

In 1313 the Pacific Company, in consequence of
the embarrassments growing out of the war of 1812
with Cireat Britain, sold ¢ its establishments, furs,
and stock in hand” (including the posts on the
Okanagan and the Spokan) to the Northwest Com-
pany; and a few days afterwards the British sloop-
of-war Raccoon arrived, took possession of the
place, and hoisted the British flag. . .

By the treaty of Ghent, ratified by us in 1815, it

* See an elahorate examination of the question in Green-
how’s Orcgon, page 276.
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was stipulated that “all territory, places, and pos-
sessions whatsoever taken by either party from the
other during the war, or which may be taken afier
the signing of this treaty, excepting only the islands
hercinafter mentioned, shall be restored without
delay.””

In compliance with this stipulation, the establish-
ment at Astoria was restored to the United States.
The compliance was full, unconditional, and with-
out reservation of any sort. No claim was set up
by Great Britain in her written communications
with the United States on this subject, at the time
of the restoration, in respect to any right of sover-
eignty or domain in the territory thus restored.
The British Minister at Washington had, it is true,
a year before objected to the restoration, on the
ground that the place had been ﬁ)urchased by the
Northwest Company, and that it had *‘been taken
possession of in his Majesty’s name, and had been
since considered as forming part of his Majesty’s
dominions.” The objection was virtually aban-
doned by the restoration; and as the place was re-
stored without a written protest or reservation, the
ground of the objection may be regarded as having
been considered” wholly untenable by those who
took it. In this transaction, as in all others rela-
sing to the territory of Oregon, the Government of
the United States maintained, n clear and unequiv-
ocal terms, its right of sovercignty. Inits instruc-
tions to Captain Biddle in 1317, it divected him to
proceed to the mouth of the Columbia, and there
‘10 assert the claim of the United States to the
sovercignty of the adjacent country, in a friendly
and peaceable manner, and without the employ-
ment of force.” This order he exccuted on the
9th of August, 1818, by taking formal possession
of the country on the river. The formal restora-
tion of Astoria was made on the Gth of October,
1818; and in fourteen days afterwards (on the 20th
October) a convention was agreed on by the Uni-
ted States and Great Britain, containing the follow-
ing article:

‘“ART. 3. It is agreed that any country that may
¢ be claimed by either party on the northwest coast
¢ of America, westward of the Stony mountains,
¢ shall, together with its harbors, bays, and creeks,
¢ and the navigation of all rivers within the same,
“be free and open for the term of ten years from
¢ the date of the signature of the present conven-
¢ tion, to the vessels, citizens, and subjects of the
‘two Powers: it being well understood that this
¢ agreement is not to be construed to the prejudice
¢ of any claim which either of the two high con-
¢ tracting parties may have to any part of the said
¢ country, nor shall it be taken to affect the claims
¢ of any other Power or State to any part of the
¢ said country; the only object of the high contract-
‘ing parties in that respect being to prevent dis-
¢ putes and differences among themselves.”

On the 6th of August, 1427, the main provisions
of the foregoing article were renewed by the fol-
lowing convention:

“Art. 1. All the provisions of the third article
¢ of the convention concluded between the United
¢ States of America and his Majesty the King of
¢ the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ire-
¢land, on the 20th of October, 1818, shall be, and
¢ they are hereby, further indefinitely extended and
¢ continued in force, in the same manner as if all

¢ the provisions of the said article were herein spe-
¢ cifically recited.

“Art. 2. It shall be competent, however, to
¢ either of the contracting parties, in case either
¢ should think fit, at any time after the 20th Octo-
¢ ber, 1828, on giving due notice of twelve months
¢ to the other contracting party, to annul and abro-
¢ gate this convention; and it shall, in such case, be
¢ accordingly entirely annulled and abrogated, after
¢ the expiration of the said term of service.

“ArT. 3. Nothing contained in this convention,
¢or in the third article of the convention of the
£90th October, 1818, hereby continued in force,
¢ shall be construed to impair, or in any manner
¢ affect, the claims which either of the contracting
¢ parties may have to any part of the country west-
¢ ward of the Stony or Rocky mountains.”

On the basis of these two treaties the relations of
the two countries in respect to Oregon now rest;
and in order to ascertain what are the rights of the
contracting parties to the territory in dispute, we
must revert to the year 1818, to the stalu quo be-
fore they were entered into; for if, as has been
seen, nothing contained in the treaties can preju-
dice in any manner their respective claims, no acts
done since by settlement or otherwise can create,
in respect to the territory in question, any rights
which did not exist then,

This position was taken with characteristic vigor
and brevity by the distinguished Senator from
South Carolina, [Mr. CaLnoun,] sitting before me,
in a note dated the 3d of September, 1844, and ad-
dressed to Mr. Pakenham, while the Senator was
acting in the capacity of a negotiator.

Sir, I wish to be “distinctly understood on this
point, for the reason that the Hudson’s Bay Com-
pany, in which the Northwest Company has been
merged, has for several years been extending its
establishments; and because, in the negotiations
between the British Government and. ours, it has
been once, at least, if not more than once, intima-
ted by the former that British subjects had interests
there which it was bound to protect. These estab-
lishments have been made with full knowledge of
the stipulations of the conventions entered into be-
tween the two countries; and on no ground, even
the ground of equity, can any claim be set up on
the basis of these newly-created interests, To
agree to suspend the settlement of the controversy,
and then to draw from acts done by one of the par-
ties during the suspension new arguments in favor
of its own side of the question, is not only repug-
nant to every rule of fairness, but it is a violation
of the letter as well as the spirit of the agreement,
and tends to the defeat of the very object in view
in making it.

Let us see, then, what discoveries had becn
made, and what establishments formed, in 1818.
Those of Spain were paramount to all others.
She had visited and explored the whole coast from
California, where she had permanent establish-
ments, to the most northerly line of the territory
in dispute. She had discovered the Strait of Juan
de Fuca, and formed an establishment within it,
I think, in 1792, She had discovered Nootka
Sound, and established herself there. And she was
strengthened in her claims to the absolute sover-
eignty of the country by its immediate contiguity
to California, of which she had the undispute(T and
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undivided possession, with the exception of two
temporary establishments by the Russians between
the bay of St. Francisco and Cape Mendocino,
which were made to facilitate their trade in furs,
and by permission of the Spanish Government. It
is true she had not kept up her establishments
north of Cape Mendocino; but no others had been
formed in the same localities; and her rights of dis-
covery, therefore, were not superseded by rights
of occupation on the part of other nations'in any .
portion of the territory in d}swlte, excepting so far
as they may have been derived from the American
and British establishments, to which I am about to
refer.

The United States had discovered the Columbia
river, and ascended it at the time of the discovery
to the distance of twenty-five miles firom its mouth. !
She had also discovered Bulfinch’s Harbor, between
the Columbia and the Strait of Fuca. She had !
examined the country watered by the Columbia
and some of its tributaries, and she had formed
establishments within it at four different periods—
in 1809, 1810, 1811, and 1812—the most southerly
near the mouth of the Columbin, and the most north-
erly between the forty-eighth and forty-ninth paral-
lels of latitude. Spain claimed to have discovered
the Columbia seventeen years before Gray entered
it; but in 1821 she ceded all herrights to the country
north of 42°to the United States, by treaty, and thus
gave us a title to the territory watered by the river,
which Great Britain ought never tohiave questioned.
By virtue of the same act of cession, her entire right
to the coast beceme vested in us.

In the course of the public discussinns in respect
to Oregon; the United States has been charged
with dishonor and bad faith in setting up a claim
to that territory, 1st, by discovery, through the
agency of her own citizens; and 2d, by ccssion of
the rights of Spain. For, as has becn said, if the
first ground was tenable, she could not, without
nconsistency, set up a claim on the second, be-
cause she had virtually denied the second by as-
suming the first as the basis of her right. But,
sir, 18 it not quite possible for two nations to pos-,
sess rights by contiguity, or to acquire them by
discovery, neither perfect, but capable of being
rendered so by a merger of both i one? Great
Britain herself claims a right of joint occupancy |
with the United States in Oregzon: and she will
certainly not deny that a cession of her right to
us, or ours to her, would create a perfect title to
the country, without affording cause for any im-
Pputation of dishonor to either.

Great Britain, in 1818, had surveyed the Strait
of Fuca, after its outlines were known; but she
had made no discoverics on the coast which were
not comprehended within the boundaries of the

great districts previously known and visited. She
may have had establishments in the valley of the
Columbia; hut if so, I have not been able to ascer-
tain the fact. She had discovered Frazer’s river,
which empties into the Strait of Fuea at the forty-
ninth paralle) of latitude ; she had traced it from
1ts source to its mouth; she had formed an estab-
lishment on it near the fifty-fourth parallel; and it
only remains to settle by the testimony of facts the
geographical relation which this river and its valley
bear to the river and valley of the Columbia.*

_¥There is no reasonable ground to doubt that the Spaniards
liscovered the mouth of Frazer’s river ; but the locality did

I pass by, as unconnected with the question, for
the reasons I have assigned, all settlements made
subsequentl?r'to 1818 by the Hudson’s Bay Com-
pany, on which Grcat Britain has conferred large
and most important powers in respect to the coun-
try west of the Rocky mountains.  Indeed, these
establishments rest upon no legal concession, even
by herself, which confers any right of domain.
The Hudson’s Bay Company has a mere right of
exclusive trade with the Indians, without the priv-
ilege of acquiring any title to the soil in Oregon;
and in this respect the privileses of the Company
differ materially from those conferred on it in re-
lation to the territory it possesses upon Hudson’s
Ntraits.

I also pass by, as idle, the formalities of taking
wion of the country by Droughton on the
Columbia, and Vancouver in the Strait of Fuca—
formalities a long time before performed in number-

s

"less localities by the Spaniards—especially as those

of the Dritish navigators were unaccompanied b
actual settlement and oceupation, and were in di-
rect violation of a treaty which those officers were
sciit out to execute.

I have endeavored, Mr. President, in the first
part of my remarks, to maintain the Spanish title
to the northwest coast of America. I regard all at-
tempts to disparage it as antiquated and obsolete,
to be founded upon partial and illiberal views of
the subject. It 1s unnecessary to say to you, sir,
or the Senate, that antiquity is the highest element
of title, if the chain can be traced down unbroken
and entire 10 our own times. The Spanish title to
the northwest coast i almost cocval with the voy-
aces of Columbus, 1t is consecrated by discovery
as high as the 43d parallel of latitude by the lapse
of more than three centuries; as high as the 48th
by the lapse of two centuries and a half; and
as high as the 54th by the lapse of more than
seventy years. Sixty yecars ago it stood undis-
puted and unimpeached by any antagonist elaim
or pretension to territorial rights. It was con-
firmed and perfected by occupation as high as
492 20’ half a century ago. During the succeed-
ing twenty years, it was not superseded by rights
of occupation on the part of other nations, unlpss
it be to the limited extent I have stated. During
the last thirty years, all rights have been suspend-

" ed by treaty arrangements between the only two

Powers who can, with any face, set up a elaim to
the exercise of sovereiznty over the territory to
which it attaches. In the consideration of nattonal
interests in territorial posscssions, it is a narrow

not appear to me to be so distinetly settld as to authorize
me to dsstine it as i faet in the text.  On referring to Van-
couver's Juurnal, volume 2, paze 187, it will he scen that he
passed the mouth of the river without discovering it, it be-
ing then, as it is said to he now, nearly wn=ked by a shoal
ey tending northwardly from Cape Roberts alont seven miles,
Cape Roberts is the southern point of the river, and it is in-
terseeted by the 49th parallel of latitude. At pare 212 0f the
same volunie, it will be seen that, after mecting Galiano and
Valdes near Point Grey, (a tew miles porth of the river,) as
he stutes at paze 209, Vincouver says: ¢ shewed them the
sketeh | had made of our excursion, and pointed out the only
apot which | conceived we bad left examined, nearly at
the head of Bernard's channel: thy mell mueh surprised
that we had not found a river saiil to ¢xist in the region we
inul been exploring, and namned by one of tl}e_xr officers Rxo
Blancho, in complimentto the then prime minister of Spain g
wihich river these gentlemen hiad songht thus far to no pur-
pose.”” There can be no doubt that this was Prazer’s river,
as there is no other stream in the region Vancouver ¢ had
been exploring.”
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view to bind down sovereign States to all the rigor-
ous technicalities of private tenures. Great prin-
ciples of national right, viewed liberally, and ap-
plied according to the proclaimed intentions of the
parties, are the only guides worthy of statesmen
or Governments in the scttlement of questions of
sovereignty over the unoccupied portions of the
earth we inhabit. The object of Spain, in respect
to the northwest coast, was settlement—permanent
occupation. The object of Great Britain was com-
merce, traffic, transient occupation. Tested by the
principles I have stated, I cannot hesitate to con-
sider the Spanish title to the northwest coast of
America, which has of late been so much dispar-
a,i;)cd, as vesting in us rights which are unimpeach-
able.

I said at the commencement of my remarks that
one of my objects was, to defend the Spanish title,
by stating the historical facts on which it rests. I
have performed the task which I allotted to myself.
[ will only add that, with what I have said, T am
content, so far as I am concerned, toleave the whole
question where it now is, in the hands of the Ad-
ministration, relying on its firmness and its sense
of rectitude to sustain our just rights, and to respect
the just rights of others.

So_conscious is Great Britain of the invalidity of
her title, that she docs not venture to assert a right
to the exclusive sovereignty of any portion of the
territory. In 1£26 she claimed only a right of joint
occupancy, in common with othier powers; but
denied the right of exclusive dominion in the Uni-
ted States.  While insisting that she was entitled
“to place her claims at least upon a parity with
those of the United Stutes,” she has constantly re-
fused to divide the territory at the 49th parallel of
latitude, the bonndary between her and us from the
Lake of the Wouds to the Rocky mountains—a
line which would have severed the coast, and the
country in immediate contizuity with it, into twa
parts so nemrly equal, as to leave her no reasonable
ground, even on the score of an equitable division,
for the continuance of a controversy. Her desire
for territorial extension in this quarter is for the
purpose of establishing her colonial dominion over
districts of country bordering on us, and confining
our settlements within narrower limits. Our con-
test for territorial rights, which we consider indis-
putable, has no object but to enable our citizens to
extend themselves to our natural boundary—the
Pacific. Her interest is remote and contingent;
ours is direct and certain. Hers is the interest of
a State in a distant country which she wishes to
colonize; ours is the interest of a country in its
own proper territory and settlements. She is not
content with subjecting to her sway the fertile and
opulent regions of the East; but she comes now
thousands of miles across the ocean to dispute with
us the dominion of the uninhabited wilderness, and
curtail the area for our expansion. With the least
disposition on her part to listen to the sugges-
tions of reason and justice, this question would
long ago have been settled on the fair and honor-
able terms of compromise—nay, sir, on the terms
of concession—which we have more than once
proposed.

I'am sure that in the course of our Government
in relation to Great Britain, in our negntiations,
and in the treaties which have been formed between
us, no evidence will be found of a desire on our

part to encroach on her rights, or to adjust any of
the questions which have arisen between us on
other terms than those of justice and liberality.
The settlement of the northeastern boundary—one
of the most delicate and difficult that has everarisen
between us—affords a striking evidence of our de-
sire to maintain with her the most friendly under-
standing. We ceded to her a portion of territory
which she deemed of vital importance as a means
of military communication between the Canadas
and her Atlantic provinces, and which will give her
a great advantage in a contest with us. The meas-
ure was sustained by the constituted authorities
of the country, and I have no desire or intention to
call its wisdom in question. But it proves that we
were not unwilling to afford Great Britain any fa-

cility she required for consolidating her North

American possessions—acting in peace as though

war was not to be expected between the two coun-
tries. If we had cherished any ambitious designs in

respect to them—if we had had any other wish than
that of continuing on terms of amity with her and
them—this great military advantage would never
have been conceded to her.

On the other hand, I regret to say that her course
towards us has been a course of perpetual eneroach-
ment. But,sir, I will not look back upon what is
past for the purpose of reviving disturbing recol-
lections.  Yet I am constrained to say, that in re-
spect to Oregon, I consider her legislation as a vir-
tual infraction of the conventions of 1813 :nd 1827.
By an act of Parliament paseed in 1821, she hag
extended the jurisdiction, power, and anthority of
her courts of judicature in Upper Canada over the
whole Indian territory in North America, ‘“not
within her own provinces, or within any civil gov-
ernment of the United Statex,’” and of course em-
bracing the territory of Oregon. She has given
them cognizance of every wrong and injury to the
person and to property, real or personal, commit-
ted within the territory, and has declared that every
person whatsoever (not British subjects alone, but
every person whatsoever) residing in it shall be
amenable to these courts. Nay, sir, she has au-
thorized the Crown to establish courts within the
territory itself, with power to try criminal offences
not punishable with death, and also civil causes to
a limited amount—I helieve £200—about 41,000,
She has thus assumed to exercise over this terri-
tory one of the hirhest attributes of national sov-
ereignty—that of deciding upon rights of property
and punishing violations of the criminal laws she
has extended over them. She could havdly have
asserted a more absolute sovereignty than she has
done by this unqualified extension of her laws and
the jurisdiction of her courts over a territory in
which she admits that she has no other right but
that of a joint occupancy. Iamaware that she has
disavowed the intention of enforcing her criminal
laws against citizens of the United States. But if
Senators will turn to the documents accompanying
the President’s Message, they will sce that the Hud-
son’s Bay (‘ompany has a much more summary
method of disposing of American citizens, who es-
tablish themsclves on the north side of the Colum-
bia, in the neighborhood of its settlements. Their
condition is not bettered, if this exemption from
the operation of the British statute is to be ex-
;:hanged for a forcible process of ejection without

aw,
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Under these circumstances, what is the duty of
the United States? As I do not intend to intrude
myself on the attention of the Sex}ate agaip, without
absolute necessity, on any question relating to Ore-
gon, I desire to say now that I shall votc for the
notice to terminate the convention of 1818, con-
tinued in force by that of 1327—a convention which
Great Britain treats as recognising a right of joint
occupancy, but whicli has in reality been for her
an exclusive occupancy of the whole territory
north of the Columbia. I am in favor of extend-
ing the authority of our laws and the jurisdic-
tion of our courts over the territory; and 1 doing
so, I would, while the convention is in force, spe-
cially except British subjects, and direct them,
when charged with infractions of our laws, to be
delivered up to the nearest British authorities. 1
would make this reservation, for the express pwr-

ose of preventing, as far as possible, a conflict of
Jurisdiction, and to avoid all cause for imputing to
us a disregard of treaties, or a desire to produce col-
Iision or disagreement of any sort. And in order
to facilitate the extension of the anthority of the
Union over our fellow citizens in that remote dis-
trict of our country, and to remove, as far as pos-
sible, the obstacles to a more free and efficient in-
tercourse between us and them, I would establish
at once a chain of military posts, with competent
garrisons and armaments, from the remotest navi-
gable waters which flow into the Mississippi, to

the eastern face of the Rocky mountains, stopping |

there so long as the convention continues in force.
Duty, honor, policy—all demand these measures
at our hands : and ‘I trust they will be exccuted
with promptitude and decision.

‘Will these measures produce war? I cannot be-
lieve that they will. I cannot believe it, because
they furnish no just ground of provocation. The
right to give the notice is reserved by treaty. The
right of extending our laws over Oregon is a right
similar to that which Great Britain has already
exercised for a quarter of a century. The establish-
ment of a chain of posts to the Rocky mountains
wholly within our own territory, invades no right
in others. It has been inferred, from an expression
in a public document, that there is danger of an im-
mediate war, and that a sudden blow may be struck.
Sir, T cannot believe it. A war waged against us on
account of any one orall of the measures referred to,
would be a war of plain, unmixed aggression. No
nation, in the present age, could embark in such a
contest, without drawing downupon herself the con-
demnation of all civilized communities. She would
find herself opposed and restrained by public opin-
ion, which, in our day, rules the conduct of nations
more powerfully than the arm of force. I hold,
therefore, immediate war to be out of the question.
Norcan eventual war take place, unless the asser-
tion of our just rights shall be forcibly resisted.
But Twill not venture to pass judgment on what the
future may bring forth. = Collisions may grow out
of these measures—collisions ripening, through in-
fluences and events which we may be unable to
control, into open warfare. I should deeply de-
plore such a result. The interests of humanity,
great principles of political right, self-government,
freedom, individual rights, all suffer when the voice
of the law is silenced by the tumult of war. ¢In-

ter arma silent leges,” is an adage, of the truth of
which history has furnished too many fatal proofs.
Twould do much to avert such a calamity. I would
do anything not inconsistent with the public honor,
to avoid a contest which would be disastrous to
both parties, no matter whatshould be its final issue.
But beyond this I never can go. And if exemp-
tion from war can only be purchased by a surren-
der of our just rights, I cannot consent to make
the purchase. But if war cannot be averted, I
trust we shall not commit the great error of under-
valuing our adversary.  With some opportunity
of observing the condition of Great Britain near
at hand, T have no hesitwion in saying that she
was never capable of greater efforts than she is at
the present moment. I knew that her inordinate
distension contains within itself an element of vi-
tal wealiness. It is not in the order of human so-
ciety that so extended a dominion should remain
long unbroken. But I have not yet been able
to detect, in the condition of her body politic,
the unerring symptoms of that decay which pre.
cedes and works out the dissolution of empires,
She has great abuses to struggle against. The
Senator from Ohio has well and graphically de-
scribed them. She has enormous burdens to sus-
tain; but she has great strength to bear them.
Her soldiers are not like those of Rome in her lat-
ter days, enervated in vizor and relaxed in dis-
cipline. You will find them in every quarter of the
zlobe, under the fiery heat of the equator, and
amid the frosts of the arctic circle, braving the cle-
meunts, and setting danger and toll, in every form,
at defiance.  But, sir, I pretend not, with my nar-
row foresight, to lnok into the future. It is pos-
sible that her hour may be near at hand. But we
know that the last struggle of the strong man is
always the most desperate, and sometimes the most
dangerous to the antagonist who has brought him
to the ground.

I say this in no spirit of timidity. I say itin
a spirit of prudent forecast—with the desire that
we may go into the contest, if it shall come, with
the assurance thut we have to deal with a strong
adversary and not a weak one; and that our prep-
aration may be commensurate with the means of
offence to which we shall be exposed. I have no
doubt of our ability both to defend ourselves, and
to sive back effective blows in return. 'We were
never so strong as we are at the present moment:
strong in our position, strong in our means, strong
in the spirit and euergy of our people. Our de-
fenceless condition has been greatly overstated.
‘We have been told that our coast is denuded. 1
have heard, whether on this floor or elsewhere I
do not know, that there is scarcely a gun mounted
for the defence of the commercial metropolis of
my own State. There cannot be a greater error.
There are hundreds of guns, of heavy calibre, in
the city of New York, ready, at the very hour in
which I speak, to reccive an assailant, and as
many more, which can be placed in position in
an emergency, and this independently of guns
afloat. In thirty days I believe the city might be
rendered, with a skilful engineer, and with the
means which might be placed at his command,
prepared—well prepared—against a maritime as-

sault. But, sir, I turn away from all these fore-
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bodings of evil. I have confidence in the contin-| ed, then I have only to say that, whileI would be
uance of peace. I believe the good sense of both | constrained by nothing but overruling necessit
countries will revolt at a contest which can bring | to take up the sword, yet, if the necessity sh
no good to either, and secure an adjustment of [ come, I trust we shall never consent to lay it down
existing difficulties on terms honorable to both. |until the rights and the honor of the country shall
Such is my conviction. But, sir, if [ am deceiv- | have been fully vindicated.
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